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PISCATAQUIS COUNTY ICE ARENA

The Piscataquis County Ice Arena was gifted to the greater Piscataquis County region, located in Dover-
Foxcroft, Maine. Created by the Libra Foundation and Partner, operated by Foxcroft Academy, the PCIA is a
premier, privately owned ice arena in Maine and one of the finest ice facilities in New England. Opening this
past Fall (2019), the PCIA has been host to many on and off-ice participants including students from most area
schools including Greenville, Milo/Brownville, Corinth, and Guilford.
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Grand Opening / Ribbon Cutting September 30th, 2019

The Libra Foundation, based in Portland, Maine, was created by Elizabeth Noyce in 1989 and has made
significant contributions to worthy causes throughout the State of Maine. Embracing the sense of proportion
and fairness defined by its name, Libra, the Foundation maintains a balance and diversity of giving throughout
Maine and across all populations. As Libra grows, it will continue to strive for innovative ways to enrich
Maine, empower communities, and enhance the quality of life of all Maine citizens. Because of the generosity
of the Libra Foundation, the people in and around Piscataquis County have the opportunity to benefit from the
programming offered by the PCIA.



The High School hockey round robin hockey tournament in November saw teams from Houlton, Presque Isle,
Old Town/Orono, Bangor, John Bapst, and Hampden participating on ice and within our community. A
rejuvenated Foxcroft Academy HS (Club) Hockey program included not only students from FA, but also three
from PCHS (Guilford) and included multiple first time
skaters. The Penquis Youth Hockey Association, a
USA hockey affiliate program, was also created
allowing over 60 girls and boys from the surrounding
areas the ability to learn the basics of the game of
hockey. Thursday night adult stick & puck pick up
hockey games give our local hockey talent the
opportunity to rekindle their love of the game and
allow many to “strut their stuff” in front of many
spectators. Hockey is back in Piscataquis County!

For those just wanting to skate, public skate sessions
are held throughout each week. Friday evening public
skate sessions often had over 100 participants skating on the ice
at one time. Daytime sessions, although not as heavily attended,
are utilized by those seeking new activities to add exercise and
social interaction to their lives. From this evident desire for
skating, the PCIA skate program was born. Whether novice or
expert, young or old, skating for recreation or with a purpose
driven goal in mind, the PCIA skate program has instructors and
programming available. Almost 2500 participants signed
waivers to partake in the on-ice activities at the PCIA. A great
majority of these skaters took part in the public skate sessions
and these people also played a major role in the success of the PCIA.

Other on-ice activities at the PCIA include broomball and
curling. These recreation sports saw participants of all
ages playing games new to most in Dover-Foxcroft and
the surrounding communities. The PCIA partnered with
the American Cancer Society in the Sweep Away Cancer
Broomball Tournament with the hope of creating greater
awareness. The curling club at the PCIA was also created
and is beginning to gain momentum. Both broomball and
curling programs will evolve as participation continues to
grow. For those not feeling comfortable being on skates,
but who would like to try something new, broomball and
curling may be for you.
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(PCIA continued on page 126)
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BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Chairman’s Report

As Chair of the Select Board in 2018-2019 | am pleased to provide the following report.

The town has continued to make progress working on improving gravel and paved roads. Asphalt prices have
been favorable over the past 3 years which has allowed the town to do some additional road work ahead of
schedule. There is however a large amount of work remaining, especially as we look at the need to make
improvements to bridges and sidewalks.

As the town works to keep up with capital projects, we have also been working to make sure that we have the
equipment that we need to do these projects. Early in the year the town replaced the grader as we had seen
significant down time with this particular machine and had to rely extensively on the warranty. With fifty miles
of gravel roads to maintain in both summer and winter, the town cannot be without a reliable grader.

In FY 2019 the town began the process of working with the state MDOT on a traffic study that will allow the
MDOT to identify ways it can make traffic improvements within the town as it plans future road projects. While
the study won’t require the town to take any specific actions, it will identify solutions to traffic and pedestrian
issues and make it more likely that the MDOT will participate in making these improvements as part of future
projects.

Throughout FY 2018-2019 its been encouraging to see new investment in the community. Through investments
at Pleasant River Lumber and the Piscataquis County Ice Arena as well as other business and residential
development the towns tax base is in a position to experience some growth. It’s certainly encouraging to see
this type of investment that can lead to population and job growth over the long term.

Fiscal Year 2019 saw a big transition in terms of solid waste disposal. The new disposal facility in Hampden,
Coastal Resources began accepting waste in its testing phase in late 2019. This facility will provide long term
and affordable waste disposal and recycling opportunities for the region for many years.

I’d like to thank the members of the Select Board for giving me the opportunity to serve as Chair over this past
year. It’s a pleasure to serve with dedicated board members who make the position of Chair an easy one. I’d
like to recognize the town employees for their hard work and dedication. Finally, I’d like to recognize and
thank all the towns volunteers who give of their time and make so many community projects possible.

Respectfully Submitted,

Elwood Edgerly
Chairman, Dover-Foxcroft Board of Selectmen



TOWN MANAGER

Fiscal Year July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019

In terms of projects coming getting under way or getting completed, exciting things happened in FY 2018-2019.
The town’s street lighting got a new look in the last fiscal year. In late summer 2018 the town transitioned from
leasing street lights from CMP to owning its own lights and upgrading to energy efficient LED lights and
installing decorative lighting in the downtown area. A lot of research and public input went into the color
selection of the LED’s such that the light would be soft enough and properly shrouded so that there would be no
issues for vehicles driving at night. Also, the new lighting was designed to direct light down to sidewalks and
roadways and minimize light pollution and glare.

In the Fall of 2019, the Piscataquis County Ice Arena opened for business. The Libra Foundation selected
Dover-Foxcroft as the location of its new state of the art indoor ice arena. The facility hosts public skating, ice
hockey for all ages, as well as curling. The facility provides comfortable seating for over 200 spectators and the
state-of-the-art temperature controls provide a very positive experience for those on the ice and those in the
seats. Rooms upstairs accommodate group meetings and the facility can be rented for private events such as
birthday parties. The facility is owned by the August Corporation, a subsidiary of the Libra Foundation and is
operated by Foxcroft Academy. The ice area is a regional facility and not exclusive to the town or to Foxcroft
Academy. By the end of 2019, the use of the facility outpaced projections and public skating was often filled
to capacity.

The town was ambitious in 2019 in terms of road paving. The town contracted for paving with Hopkins Paving
LLC and the work included paving on Forest St. Dwelley Ave., Davis St., Grange St. Harvey St., the North end
of Grove St. and Pleasant St. along with new sidewalks on Pleasant St. 2019 work also included reclaiming
pavement on a 2,000’ section of Parsons Landing Road. The town has been consistent for four years in
implementing its pavement management plan adopted in 2016. This consistent approach to maintaining our
paved roads is making a big difference in terms of safety. Also, it will allow the town to be cost effective in its
road paving and lead to fewer miles of road reconstruction required in the near future.

Lots of work on the land use ordinance was done in fiscal year 2018-2019. The land use committee updated the
land use ordinance to address items such as abandoned buildings, medical marijuana, mega projects as well as
some housekeeping items with regards to clarifying certain points in the land use ordinance. With the many
recent developments in these areas, it’s important that the town can be up to date with its ordinances so that we
can efficiently consider development applications and move developers through the process in a timely manner.

As 2019 drew to a close, we began hearing for the first time about a virus beginning to appear in certain parts of
the world. Having the benefit of completing this report in early 2020, it’s safe to say that the changes being
brought about by Covid-19 in terms of social distancing are profound and many changes going forward will
likely be. Next year’s report will certainly be dominated by this topic and its ramifications.

In closing, I’d like to recognize all the town employees, elected officials, residents and volunteers who work
hard in so many different ways in service to our community. Its not everywhere that you find so many people
so dedicated to being involved in the community and willing to help their neighbors and those in need. Our
community like many other tight knit communities are able to pull together when times aren’t the best and
support each other. Because of this we are very fortunate here in Dover-Foxcroft.

Respectfully Submitted,

Jack J. Clukey
Town Manager



TOWN OF DOVER-FOXCROFT MUNICIPAL OFFICERS
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HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
2 STATE HOUSE STATION
AUGUSTA, MAINE 04333-0002
(207) 287-1315

Norman E. Higgins
P.O. Box 594
Dover-Foxcroft, ME 04426
Residence: (207) 564-8214
Cell Phone: (207) 343-1068
Norman.Higgins@Iegislature.maine.gov

Citizens of Dover-Foxcroft,

It is an honor and a privilege to serve in the 129" Legislature representing Dover-Foxcroft. My work serving on the newly created
Innovation, Development, and Economic Advancement (IDEA) Committee has been focused on developing a strategic plan to
support and develop an economy that is uniquely Maine economy that is derived in agriculture, aquaculture and manufacturing.
We are working towards long-term planning that is needed to accelerate Maine’s economy.

The legislature came together this year to relatively quickly pass a budget. While | have some concerns about the increase in total
spending, |1 am happy overall because | do believe that this budget practices fiscal responsibility by adding $20 million to the
“rainy day fund”, providing funding to provide healthcare for those who otherwise couldn’t afford it, and not spending beyond our
means. This budget also doesn’t increase taxes and will be providing much-needed property tax relief.

Also included in this year’s budget are increases in municipal revenue sharing, up from 2 to 3% in 2020 and to 3.75% in 2021.
With state revenue projections turning out higher than originally expected, the numbers are better for the towns to pays for local
services like schools, public safety and road maintenance- instead of relying on property tax increases. Dover-Foxcroft will be
receiving an additional $135,610 dollars in 2020 and in 2021 a projected $276,945 more than the last approved budget in 2018.
This is great news for taxpayers.

Things haven’t been totally ideal in Augusta. Over the summer, the legislature was called back for a special bond session that
would provide funding on the roads, land conservation, environmental protection, and broadband internet development. | was a
proponent of the broadband bond because it would have benefitted Piscataquis County especially with how only 76% of our
homes have access to high-speed internet. Only the transportation bond passed. | still believe the legislature can do something
big on bringing broadband internet to our corner of the state and | will continue to advocate towards this.

At home, | am pleased that the Mayo Regional Hospital merger with Northern Light will proceed. | have been a supporter of this
because | believe that we need long-term stability to maintain our seniors in Piscataquis County. By having this merger go
through, we will have the same continued care without interruptions as well as all the resources that come from Northern Light to
our community hospital. I am also thrilled to see the completion of the new Piscataquis County Ice Arena. The arena will be a
great center for young and old to get active as the winter doldrums start to set in. There are programs for everyone — for little ones
just learning to skate and for us “old timers” looking to get on the ice.

This next session we have a lot of big issues that we have to figure out. Please get in touch with me to share your opinion on
pending legislation or if you need help with any government agency. | am at your service and proud to share our story as a
community,

Norman E. Higgins
State Representative

District 120  Atkinson, Brownville, Dover-Foxcroft, Medford, Milo and Plantation of Lake View,
plus the unorganized territory of Orneville Township



712944 &g” latuve Senator Paul T. Davis, _Sr.
3 State House Station

Senalte a/ Maine Augusta, ME 04333-0003

Office: (207) 287-1505
Senate Distvict # Cell: (207) 343-0258
Paul.Davis@Ilegislature.maine.gov

A Message from Senator Paul T. Davis, Sr.

Dear Friends and Neighbors:

Let me begin by thanking you for allowing me the privilege of serving you in the Maine Senate. | am honored
that you have put your trust in me and can assure you | will continue to work tirelessly on your behalf.

Maine is in the midst of one of the greatest periods of prosperity in its history and has led the nation in a number
of economic categories over the last several years. Unemployment is at record low levels, wages are up, and
state government has had seven straight years of surpluses. The number of children living in poverty is in a
steep decline, and Maine now leads the nation in equality for women in the workplace and politics.

Though we have accomplished a great deal in the past year, there is still much more to be done. Maintaining
the prosperity that you have built over the last several years tops the list. We can do this by holding the line on
government spending, doing our best to stay out of the way of local businesses so that they can thrive as a result
of their own hard work, and making sure that government is the most fiscally responsible steward of your tax
dollars. These will be a few of my priorities this coming year.

Again, thank you for electing me to serve you in the State Senate. The 129™ Legislature certainly has a great
deal more work to do; but I believe that if we come together, there is nothing we can’t accomplish. Please feel
free to contact me at (207) 343-0258 or Paul.Davis@Ilegislature.maine.gov if you have comments, questions or
if you would like assistance in navigating our state’s bureaucracy.

Sincerely,

7D £

Paul T. Davis, Sr.
State Senator, District 4

Fax: (207) 287-1527 * TTY (207) 287-1583 * Message Service 1-800-423-6900 * Web Site: legislature.maine.gov/senate
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STATE OF MAINE
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR
1 STATE HOUSE STATION

AUGUSTA, MAINE

(4333-0001

Dear Friends:

It was the highest honor of my life to take the oath of office to become Maine’s 75th governor. Over the next
three years, | will continue to do everything in my power to make Maine the safe, beautiful, prosperous state we
all want for our children and grandchildren.

During my first year in office, | directed the implementation of the voter-approved Medicaid expansion,
allowing over 40,000 Maine people to gain health care coverage. We added state guaranteed protections for
people with pre-existing conditions, passed a prescription drug reform package, and restored the Maine Drugs
for the Elderly and Disabled program, covering an additional 1,800 seniors. And we continue to work on
strategies to bring down the cost of health care for small businesses and others. | also signed an Executive Order
directing my Administration to develop effective opioid prevention efforts in schools, make Narcan more
available, increase medication assisted treatment, train recovery coaches, and expand drug courts.

Protecting Maine’s environment and tackling climate change are key priorities of my Administration. I am
committed to increasing Maine’s Renewable Portfolio Standard to 80 percent by 2030; improving our modes of
transportation; weatherizing homes and businesses; and reaching 100 percent renewable energy by 2050. By
embracing the green technology of the future, we will reduce the impacts of climate change, create good-paying
jobs, preserve clean air and water, and protect our state’s farming, fishing, and forestry industries.

The biennial budget provided more revenue sharing, more homestead reimbursements, and more disaster
assistance for towns — which all together will result in relief for property taxpayers. It invested $115 million in
education and school renovations, and we are working toward Pre-K for every 4-year-old, increasing post-high
school options that result in a valued credential, and making sure that every able adult is working. Further, I,
along with government agencies, small business owners, entrepreneurs, economists, and hard-working Mainers,
developed a statewide economic development plan, the first in nearly 25 years. We will diversify our economy,
empower innovators, and attract young, talented people to live, work, and raise their families here in Maine.

It is time for new, dynamic ideas that will change Maine for the better. | welcome your ideas. We are all in this
together. We all want Maine to have a beautiful environment, healthy people, and prosperous communities.

Thank vou,

e
Janet T. Mills
Governor

PHOME: (207) 287-3531 (Vaice) B38-377-6690 (TTY) FAS: (207) 287-1034

T IS S B
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Washington Office

Committee on Armed Services

Committee on Small Business

Chairman, Subcommittee oo Cantracting

Fax. (202) 2252943 ¥ si 4
www.golden. house.gov % Z:i) f
Jared Golden

Congress of the United States
2nd District of Maine

and Infrastrocture

Dear Friends,

I hope this letter finds you well. It is an immense honor to serve as your representative in Congress. | take very
seriously the responsibility that has been placed on me, and | would like to take this opportunity to share with
you some of what I’ve been working on in my first year in Congress.

At the beginning of this term, the House passed H.R. 1, a comprehensive package of reforms I cosponsored to
get big money out of politics and fight corruption in Washington. And in December, I helped pass H.R. 3, the
Lower Drug Costs Now Act, which would limit out-of-pocket prescription drug costs paid by seniors, fund the
expansion of Medicare coverage to include dental, vision, and hearing, and lower prescription drug prices for
thousands of Mainers. Additionally, as a member of the House Armed Services Committee, | worked to ensure
our annual defense authorization bill supports America’s national security and Maine’s shipyard workers,
National Guardsmen, manufacturers, and universities.

On top of working on this legislation, | have also been advocating for our district directly to administrative
agencies. | have been fighting for Maine lobstermen to urge the president to intervene in proposed regulations
by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) that would hurt our lobster industry. |
pressed government agencies to ground their regulations in sound science and data when crafting new
regulations on Maine’s lobstermen. | also persuaded the Army Corps of Engineers to hold a public hearing in
Maine about the proposed Central Maine Power NECEC transmission line, which gave hundreds of people the
opportunity to voice their opinions about the project.

Some of the most important work of members of Congress is rooted in on-the-ground constituent services. We
have three offices in the district -- in Caribou, Bangor, and Lewiston -- and my staff work tirelessly to help
Mainers solve problems they may face with federal government agencies. | urge you to stop by to talk to us in
person and let us know how we can better serve you and your communities.

My favorite part of the job is coming home to the district and hearing about what matters to you. This year, |
brought a hearing of the House Small Business Subcommittee on Contracting and Infrastructure to Maine to
find ways to expand access to rural broadband. I’ve also held open town halls and coffee hours throughout the
district to hear directly from Mainers veterans, as well as roundtables to find more ways to help small
businesses in Maine grow and create jobs.

As always, please continue to reach out to me and my staff if you’d like to voice an opinion, let us know about a
local event, or seek any assistance with federal agencies.

Respectfully,

Jod | Gl

Jared Golden " Bangor ME 04101 Cribou, ME 0475

ez
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Wnited States Senate

January 1, 2020
Dear Friends,

The beginning of a new year provides the opportunity to reflect on the progress of the past 12 months. If you’ve been
watching cable TV, you might think that every waking moment of 2019 in Washington has been consumed by
divisive, partisan issues — and while there’s no shortage of those debates, there have also been opportunities for
bipartisan cooperation. You sent me to the Senate to make the most of those opportunities, so as we enter into the
New Year, | wanted to take a moment to update you on my efforts to work with members of both parties to make life
better for the people of Maine.

One of my most important priorities this past year has been emphasizing preventive healthcare. Maine’s distinction
as the oldest state in the nation brings us wisdom, of course — but it also creates unique challenges, particularly
relating to healthcare. The key to addressing these obstacles is being proactive, because the cheapest, safest medical
procedure is the one that doesn’t need to happen. That’s why I’ve introduced legislation to incentivize healthier
living, expand mental health screenings, and help more Americans access regular check-ups. We’re making
progress, but we’ve got a long way to go — and I’d like your help, because I know that the best ideas are the ones that
come from families and communities on the front lines of these challenges. To strengthen this effort, | convened a
policy forum on prevention in Bangor in October, which has already given me exciting new ideas that I’ll carry with
me into 2020. If you have additional thoughts on encouraging preventive healthcare, please share them with my
office.

This year has also continued the growth of Maine’s forest products industry — a key focus of my work to revitalize
Maine’s rural economy and communities. We’ve seen significant investment in mills across the state, creating good
jobs to support rural Maine. I’m also pleased that the investments aren’t just in our mills — the industry is thriving
because of its commitment to innovation. We’re fortunate to have the University of Maine’s top-notch researchers
exploring cutting-edge ways to use our forest resources, including capitalizing on the rise of 3D printing technology
with the world’s largest 3D printer. Combining this work with ongoing federal support, our vast forests, and Maine’s
dedicated workforce, I know that the future of this industry is bright, and I’ll continue working to support it on all
fronts.

I’'m proud of all we’ve accomplished together this year, but even as I reflect on all that we’ve achieved, it is
challenging to not think of the work left undone. It sometimes can be discouraging to watch these important
priorities hang in limbo, but fortunately for me, encouragement is never far. After all, I get to live in Maine — which
means | get to count Maine people as my neighbors and friends. I’'m always struck by the kindness that our citizens
show not only to me, but also to each other. This focus on collaboration and compassion is an inspiration, and it
powers my efforts bring a little bit of Maine common sense to Washington. Thank you for all you do to for our state
— Mary and | are deeply grateful, and we hope that 2020 will be a good year for you, your family, your community,
and the State of Maine.

Best Regards,

ey

Angus S. King Jr.
United States Senator
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SUSAN M. COLLINS

Mnited States Senate

WASHINGTON, DC 20510-1804

Dear Friends,

As 2019 ends and 2020 begins, | am pleased to report that Congress made progress on a number of issues important to Maine families
despite the polarization in our country.

In a major win for surviving military and retiree spouses to whom we are deeply indebted, | was proud to co-lead the repeal of what is
often referred to as the “Military Widow’s Tax,” an unfair offset of survivor benefits that has prevented as many as 67,000 surviving
spouses—including more than 260 from Maine—from receiving the full benefits they deserve.

The high cost of health care and prescription drugs continues to be a top issue for families and seniors. To provide continued relief for
more lower- and middle-income individuals, I led the charge to extend for another two years the medical expense tax deduction that |
included in the 2017 tax law. Without this extension, nearly 20,000 Mainers and millions of Americans with high medical expenses,
including many with preexisting conditions, would have faced an increased tax burden. In other good news, the CREATES Act |
cosponsored became law. It will prevent pharmaceutical companies from blocking access to a sufficient supply of brand-name drugs
needed for the studies that allow less expensive alternatives to enter the marketplace.

Improving people’s health and wellbeing remains my priority. On a per capita basis, Maine has the highest incidence of Lyme disease
in the country. In August, I held a Senate hearing at the University of Maine’s Tick Lab on this growing public health crisis. A
comprehensive public health strategy to combat this epidemic is needed, and the new law I authored will do just that.

In addition, | helped champion another $2.6 billion increase for the National Institutes of Health, our nation’s premiere biomedical
research institution, including significant boosts for Alzheimer’s disease and diabetes research. Last year, NIH funded more than $111
million for research at 14 Maine institutions.

To help prepare the graduates of Maine Maritime Academy, | secured $300 million for a new training ship, which will ensure rigorous
instruction for MMA students for decades to come.

Significant federal funding was approved for work at Bath Iron Works and Portsmouth Naval Shipyard. Funding appropriated by
Congress will pay for three new destroyers, make a down payment on an additional ship, and finance infrastructure improvements at
PNSY.

As Chairman of the Transportation and Housing Appropriations Subcommittee, I have led efforts to improve our nation’s crumbling
infrastructure and ensure that Maine’s housing needs are addressed. For Maine’s roads, bridges, airports, and seaports, tens of millions
in federal funding will help make urgently needed upgrades and improve safety. Funding will also support housing assistance to low-
income families and seniors and aid communities in reducing homelessness among our youth. The Community Development Block
Grant program will assist numerous towns and cities in our State.

The Aging Committee | chair has continued its focus on financial security for our seniors. A new law | authored will make it easier for
small businesses to offer retirement plans to their employees. Our Aging Committee’s Fraud Hotline fielded more than 1,200 calls this
year. Congress passed a new law to crack down on robocallers who are often the perpetrators of these scams. And a new law |
authored will expand the IRS’ Identity Protection PIN program nationwide to prevent identity theft tax refund fraud.

At the end of 2019, | cast my 7,262nd consecutive vote. In the New Year, | will keep working to deliver bipartisan solutions to the
challenges facing Maine and the nation. If ever | can be of assistance to you, please contact one of my state offices or visit my website
at www.collins.senate.gov. May 2020 be a good year for you, your family, your community, and our state.

Sincerely,

Awia M Collisie

Susan M. Collins
United States Senator
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MUNICIPAL OFFICE REPORT

The Annual Town Meeting Referendum, Election of Municipal Officers, and RSU No. 68 Referendum will be held on Tuesday, July
14, 2020, at the Municipal Building Gymnasium on Morton Avenue. The meeting will open at 7:45 AM with the election of
Moderator. Voting will begin at 8:00 AM and the polls will remain open until 8:00 PM. The following municipal official positions
will be on the ballot:

For Selectman, Assessor, Overseer of the Poor 3 positions/3 year term
For Executive Committee Thompson Free Library 1 position/ 1 year term
For RSU #68 Board of Directors 1 positions/3 year term

The public is encouraged to attend Select Board meetings and participate during open session. Select Board meetings are held on the
second and fourth Mondays of each month (summer schedule varies). Meetings and agendas are posted in the municipal building
lobby and on our website, www.dover-foxcroft.org. Special town meetings and elections are posted on our website. Notices are also
posted at Webber Ace Hardware, Mountains Market, US Post Office, and on Municipal Building lobby bulletin board. You may
register to vote at the town office and also at the polls on Election Day. The following is a Record of Elections for Fiscal Year July 1,
2018 — June 30, 2019 :

Election Date Type of Election Total
Voters
(approx.)
August 27, 2018 Special Town Meeting, RSU No. 68 12
November 6, 2018 State of Maine Referendum 1791
Special Town Meeting Municipal — Land
Use Articles
April 27,2019 Annual Town Meeting for June Budget 158
Validation Referendum/Town Articles
June 11, 2019 Annual Town Meeting to Elect 261
Municipal Candidates and
Referendum/County
RSU No. 68 Budget Validation
Referendum

Ranked Choice Voting (RCV) in Maine was first used in the June 12, 2018 Primary Election. Ranked Choice Voting allows voters to
choose candidates in order of preference, by marking candidates as their first, second, third, and subsequent choices. The votes are
tabulated in rounds, with the lowest ranking candidates eliminated in each round until there are only two candidates left. The one who
is determined to have the majority of the votes (more than 50%) in the final round is declared the winner. It is different from our
previous method of voting, in which voters choose only one candidate for each office and the winner is determined by plurality
(whoever gets the most votes). The State of Maine is using ranked-choice voting for all of Maine's state-level primary elections and in
general elections for federal offices ONLY. The plurality method of voting is still used in municipal elections.

We continue to dress down for donations on Fridays and appreciate the support of the community while we strive to help where we
can. We are always open to your feedback and suggestions to help us provide you with the best customer service so stop in, give us a
call, or send an email to the feedback link on our website: www.dover-foxcroft.org.

We thank you for your encouragement and support over the years.
Sincerely,

The Dover-Foxcroft Municipal Office Staff:
Sheila Merrill, Cheryl Pinkham, Lisa Ronco, Elizabeth Thompson, and Cindy Woodworth
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AT YOUR SERVICE..........

The Town of Dover-Foxcroft is pleased to offer its citizens a variety of services and information. Please visit the office, visit our
website www.dover-foxcroft.org or call (207) 564-3318 with questions.

Services available at the office and online include tax and assessing information, vital records, genealogy, voter registration, cemetery
information, motor vehicle registrations (Rapid Renewal), fish & wildlife registrations, recreational vehicle registrations, dog
licensing, code enforcement, building permits, ordinance information, notary services. We also offer many online service on our
website.

The Town has a Select Board/Town Manager/Town Meeting form of Government. The Select Board holds meetings on the second
and fourth Mondays of the month, unless otherwise posted. Board meetings are held at the Municipal Building located at 48 Morton
Ave., Dover-Foxcroft at 6:30 p.m. in the meeting room.

An annual town meeting for consideration of the budget and other town business which voters are authorized to vote upon shall be
held on the fourth Saturday in April at 9:00 AM. All registered voters of Dover-Foxcroft are eligible to vote at annual or special town
meetings. All voting during town meetings will be done by a simple show of hands unless a paper ballot is warranted by a vote of
those present at the meeting. Following the annual town meeting, a budget validation referendum shall be held on the municipal
Election Day on the second Tuesday in June. Polls are open from 8am to 8 pm and are located at the municipal building gymnasium.
Town reports are available during the week before the election.

Real Estate Taxes and Home Owner Information

Tax Billing: Tax bills are sent to the owners of record as of April 1% by State law. If you buy property after that date, the bill will be
sent to the recorded owner as of April 1%. Therefore, you may not receive a bill until the following year. However, taxes are still due
and it is the responsibility of the new owner to obtain tax information from the town office or the previous owner. Taxes are payable
in two installments usually due mid-to-end of September, and mid-to-end of February. Exact due dates will be noted on your bill.
You can now pay your real estate taxes, personal property taxes, and sewer bills online by visiting the town website at
www.dover-foxcroft.org and clicking on the “online services” link.

Sewer Billing
If you live within the sewer district you will be assessed a sewer bill. The sewer bill is based on water usage and is broken into two

parts. The base sewer services charge is $89.65 for 0 to 1,200 cf per quarter and an excess rate of $9.37 per 100 cf above 1,200 cf per
quarter. A flat rate of $89.65 is charged to customers with unmetered service. These fees are determined by the town budget and are
voted on at the June election. Sewer bills are sent quarterly. The 1% and 2" quarter due date is at the end of January and the 3™ and
4™ quarter due date is at the end of June. Exact due dates will be noted on your bill.

If there are any services you would like to see offered or if you have suggestions as to how we can serve you better, please contact us.
Address for mailing: Town of Dover-Foxcroft, 48 Morton Ave., Suite A, Dover-Foxcroft, Maine 04426; Phone (207) 564.3318; Fax
(207) 564.36212.

It is our pleasure to serve you and we are always looking for ways to improve our customer service.

Sincerely,

Town of Dover-Foxcroft Office Staff
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MOTOR VEHICLE

We began offering residents Rapid Renewal Online Vehicle Registration Renewal
o - Service during the 2001-02 Fiscal Year and 170 re-registrations were done online. The

£ (W,_E“‘é“‘“‘{ number of residents using this service continues to remain steady each year. There were

456 renewals completed on-line in the Fiscal Year 2018-19 averaging over 34 renewals
per month. This service is available year round 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, for your
convenience. You may access this website at www.dover-foxcroft.org or
www.sosonline.org. To complete your renewal online, you will need your yellow registration form, insurance
card and current mileage. Payments for online registrations may be made by either credit card or checking

account.

——————
Online Motor Vehicie Re-Registration

If you are registering a new or different vehicle for the first time, you will still need to come in to our
office to complete your transaction. Effective November 2, 2017, due to the complexity of new motor vehicle
registrations, we may not process them after 3:30 PM (4:30 on Wednesdays).

Please note that our office staff is limited to phone quotes for renewals only. We will give you a quote
or estimate for new registrations if all the required paperwork is brought into the town office. There is detailed
information posted on our website that will assist you in “what you need to bring” and “how to estimate the
cost”.

Totals for motor vehicle registrations are listed for the past five years in the fiscal year comparisons
below.

FISCAL YEAR COMPARISONS
Motor Vehicle Registrations

MOTOR VEHICLE | P15 | FYIsi6 | FYie-17 | FYI718 | FYi810 FY415 | FYI516 | FY16-17 | FYI7-18 | FYIB-19
Antique Auto 46 50 40 42 39 Trailer-non-excise 454 417 410 421 417
Combination 1 2 2 2 3 Tractor/Special Mobile 2 3 6 4 4
Gold Star 0 1 1 1 1 Coach-Emergency 2 2 3 3 3
Wabanaki 0 1 1 1 1 Farm 19 20 31 29 40
Lobster 19 19 19 16 20 Motorcycle 145 126 134 130 119
Black Bear 22 26 17 20 17 Moped 19 15 14 12

Breast Cancer 76 84 75 72 7 Street Rod 0 0 0 1
Conservation 91 89 7 61 58 Special Equipment 6 4 4 1

University 9 10 6 7 6 Bus 2 3 2 4
Agriculture 37 38 39 34 31 Titles 375 383 377 388 406
Sportsman 55 61 73 58 59 Initial Plates 161 156 143 150 147
Troop Support 1 8 10 10 9 Lost Plates 56 19 30 29 57
Disabled 20 8 38 27 27 Duplicate Stickers 116 101 76 106 124
Disabled Veteran 10 2 9 10 6 Duplicate Registrations 33 44 33 30 27
Veteran 36 105 110 96 115 Transfers 243 256 250 230 226
Purple Heart 1 1 2 2 3 Boosters 17 20 36 0 0
Animal Welfare 20 15 18 20 20 Transit 32 34 32 59 59
Firefighter 3 14 13 12 8 Sales Tax Paid 429 442 419 408 435
Motor Home 9 12 11 11 13 Sales Tax-no fee 123 111 138 137 122
Passenger Truck na 37 200 305 394 National Guard 1 2
Passenger 2256 2054 2062 1963 1841 Barbara Bush

Commercial 355 332 296 298 293 | Reserve Number 3
Conservation Com 0 5 5 4 4

Trailer-excise 58 64 66 66 88 On-Line Rapid Renewals 447 375 439 456 413
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INLAND FISHERIES AND WILDLIFE

We have been using the State of Maine “MOSES” (Maine Online Sportsman’s
Electronic System) for Hunting and Fishing Licenses since October of 2005 and it has
served us well. We have been processing boat, snowmobile and ATV Registrations using
this system since January 2, 2008. This online registration system provides our residents
with permanent registrations directly from the State and bypasses the need for temporary
stickers and registrations. Since May 2009 boat re-registrations have been done online
also. Residents are encouraged to go to the State’s website, www.maine.gov and follow the links to “online
services” to purchase their registrations and licenses from the convenience of their home. We now register non-
resident snowmobiles and ATV’s, sell non-resident hunting & fishing licenses and non-resident milfoil stickers
for boats. If you have questions, please feel free to contact us during regular office hours.

Maine
Online \4

DOG LICENSES

When coming in to license your dog, please bring the current Maine certificate of
rabies vaccination and documentation if your dog has been neutered or spayed. The
State of Maine rabies Form #51, NAPSHV must be “embossed” and signed by a
Maine licensed veterinarian. The annual fee for a dog license is $11.00 (if not
neutered or spayed) and $6.00 (if neutered or spayed). Dog licenses for 2020 were
available by October 15, 2019. Effective February 1* of each year, the State
mandated late fee for unlicensed dogs is $25.00 per dog. If you no longer own your
dog(s), please notify us at the town office and we will update our records. Effective
January 2011 the State no longer allows online dog licensing from February 1°* to
October 15"

VITAL RECORDS

Vital Records remains one of the busiest, ever changing areas due to new laws constantly going into effect. We
encourage everyone to call ahead so we may advise you on what you will need to prevent multiple trips to the
office to obtain your record. Due to the amount of time that is needed, please plan to arrive at least 30 minutes
before the office closes in order to receive your record on the same day. When applying for a marriage license,
please come in ahead of time to pick up the required paperwork to take home and complete prior to getting your
license. At that time we can set up an appointment for you both to come back to obtain your license and make
sure you will have all the required paperwork. Please visit our website at www.dover-foxcroft.org for more
information regarding vital records and genealogy requests.

ey — | &7\ Maine State .-v’ :
Mﬁll'le .gOVi M) Archives /8 ,
Tree— N
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FISCAL YEAR COMPARISONS

Inland Fisheries & Wildlife/Vital Records/Miscellaneous

FY2015- | FY 2016- | FY 2017- | FY 2018-

2016 2017 2018 2019
MOSES - Maine Online Sportsman's Electronic System
Inland Fisheries and Wildlife Licenses-MOSES 204 196 202 145
Inland Fisheries and Wildlife Lic.- MOSES-Non Res. 12 12 10 14
Lifetime/Over 70 Licenses 7 5 7 8
Recreational Vehicle Registrations - MOSES
Boat Renewals 370 340 329 315
Online Boat Registrations 64 55 70 79
Non Resident Milfoil Stickers 10 11 9 4
Snowmobile Renewals 246 331 309 355
Snowmobile Registrations- Non Resident 15 30 29 32
ATV Renewals 232 245 218 213
ATV Non-Resident Registrations 35 36 34 30
Vital Records/Miscellaneous
Births Recorded 140 122 145 113
Deaths Recorded 118 106 133 114
Marriages Recorded 28 25 24 24
Disposition of Human Remains Permits 184 135 252 233
Cemetery Lot Conveyance Deeds 5 6 3 4
Pole Permits 2 3 7 3
Landfill - Temporary Permits 136 163 138 120
Auto Graveyard Permits 2 3 3 3
Miscellaneous Licenses
Liguor Licenses 8 9 11 10
Dog Licenses 330 525 711 754
Online Dog Licenses 60 68 89 70
Kennel Licenses 1 1 1 1
Elections
Annual Town Meeting to Affirm Warrant Articles 1 1 1 1
Municipal Candidates & Referendum Election 1 1 1 1
RSU 68 Budget Validation Referendum 1 1 1 1
County Budget Referendum 1 1 1 1
State General/Primary/Presidential/Referendum Elections 1 1 1 1
Special Town Meetings 1 1 0 2
Voter Registrations
Registered Republicans 1031 1038 1037 1040
Registered Democrats 748 748 766 746
Registered Green Party 1014 101 102 110
Unenrolled Registered Voters 905 936 907 920

Maine.gov
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ASSESSORS AGENT

The goal of the tax assessment office is to maintain fair, equitable, and accurate assessed values that are the basis for
allocating the property taxes of the town to each property according to its proportionate value of the town according to
state law. This office has worked and continues to work to achieve this goal.

The work undertaken by the assessment office includes reviewing all deeds in the town to update property records for
ownership changes, updating parcel maps and assessment records when new lots are created in the town, maintaining and
reviewing exemptions that individuals or organizations apply for, viewing and updating values on new or improved
properties, maintaining property values in accordance to local trends in the real estate market, and maintaining values on
taxable business equipment.

In 2018 (Fiscal Year July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019) the taxable valuation of the town was $299,833,900. The tax rate was
$21.20 per thousand. The amount raised from taxation was $6,504,359.63. Of this amount $2,785,394.99 was for schools
and $434,662 for Piscataquis County.

Following the overall trends of the economy in recent years, and the local real estate market, it may become necessary to
reduce values on several types of property in the future. For now we will stay as close to market values as the annual ratio
certification allows.

We remind homeowners that if you have not already applied, you may qualify for a Homestead Exemption. Homeowners
who have owned a home in Maine for at least one year and are a resident of Maine can qualify for this exemption.
Applications are available at the town office and need to be submitted on or before April 1. At 100% of value, this
exemption is $20,000. If you already receive this exemption it shows up as a $20,000 exemption on your tax bill. There
is no need to re-apply for this exemption every year as long as you reside in the same home. If you move from one
residence to another within town, it would be a good idea to contact the Assessor’s Office or reapply for the exemption
just to make sure that your homestead exemption is transferred to your new home. New homeowners in town need to
apply by April 1. There were 924 property owners who received the homestead exemption in 2018. Following this report
is a summary of this and other tax exemption or tax relief information that may be helpful to certain property owners.

In 2019 we certified an assessment ratio, the ratio of assessed valuations to sales prices of 100%. It is our expectation to
certify a ratio of 100% in 2020 as well. We will be reviewing recent sales prior to the commitment of taxes in 2020 to
continue to monitor how our assessed valuations compare to recent sales prices.

Maine law provides that taxpayers who are of the opinion that their valuation is in excess of its market value or is assessed
disproportionately to other similar property in the town have the right to request an abatement, a reduction in their
valuation. A taxpayer has 185 days from the date of commitment of taxes to request an abatement in writing.

This year concludes my fourteenth year of contracting Assessing Agent services to Dover-Foxcroft. | have been assisted
by Alan Gove, a key member of my staff, who has worked on a regular basis in town. We have enjoyed working for the
town and meeting many property owners.

Connie Sands, in addition to working as Code Enforcement Officer, works on our tax assessment records and earns our
thanks for this. We look forward to continuing our work with the help of Connie, Brian Gaudet and the town office staff.
Their hard work and professionalism is appreciated.

Respectfully Submitted,

William VanTuinen
Assessing Agent
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TAX RELIEF/CURRENT USE TAX

Exemptions

The exemptions described below all require a one-time application by the taxpayer. The application must be
received by April 1 of the first year the taxpayer wishes to be eligible. A new application is needed only if the
taxpayer moves into another home.

Homestead Exemption: A Maine resident who has resided in the state for a period of at least 12 months prior to
the date of application may qualify for a homestead exemption on his primary residential property.

Veterans Exemption: A Maine resident who is age 62 or older and has served in a recognized war period or a
veteran who is receiving 100% disability from the United States government as a veteran. This is a $6,000.00
exemption. For certain veterans requiring specially adapted housing due to disability, this exemption is
$50,000.00.

Blind: A Maine resident who is legally blind may quality for a $4,000.00 exemption. Applications are available
at the town office or can be downloaded from http://www.maine.gov/revenue/propertytax.

Maine Residents Property Tax Fairness Credit

Maine residents who have a high level of residential property taxes compared to their income may qualify for a
refund of property taxes under the Maine Residents Property Tax Fairness Credit. To apply for the credit, you
are required to file Form 1040ME online at: www.maine.gov/revenue/netfile/gateway2.htm or mail a
completed Form 1040ME and Schedule PTFC to: Maine Revenue Services, PO Box 1066, Augusta, Maine
04332-1066.

1040ME Booklets may be downloaded from the Maine Revenue Services website at:
www.maine.gov/revenue/forms/homepage.html

Call 207-624-7894 or Write to: Maine Revenue Services, PO Box 9107, Augusta, Maine, 04332-9107 to have
a Form 1040ME booklet mailed directly to you. For more information, visit www.maine.gov/revenue or call
207-626-8475. Although this is a State, not a local program, we have information available at the town office.

Current Use

The following Current Use Programs provide for a reduced valuation on undeveloped land. They also
provide for penalties if the use of the land is changed. Applicants should carefully consider the benefits and
disadvantages. Applications for these programs need to be made by April 1st of the first year for which
classification is requested. Applications and bulletins explaining the programs are available at the town office
or can be downloaded from http://www.maine.gov/revenue/propertytax.

Tree Growth. A parcel of land with at least 10 forested acres which are managed and, at times harvested, for
commercial purposes.

Farm Land. Property must have a minimum of five acres and produce an income from agricultural use.

Open Space. No minimum acreage, but the parcel must be undeveloped and provide a public benefit.
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CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER’S REPORT

Land Use Permits

There were 117 Land Use permits issued in the past fiscal year. Below is a breakdown of the permits issued for
the fiscal year.

New Homes 8 | Land Use 4
Mobile Homes 4 | Structural Repair 1
Mobile Homes Relocated 1 | Sheds 15
Garages/Bakers 7 | Decks/Steps 7
Porches 4 | New Camps/Additions 3
Interior Renovations 6 | Demolitions 23
Signs 7 | Bunkhouse 1
Swimming Pools 1 | Home Additions 4
Renewals 3 | Driveways/Gravel/Concrete Pads 4
Barns 5 | Home Occupation 2
Chicken 1 | Fences 1
New Commercial Structures 4 | Cell Phone Tower/Antennas 1

Of the aforementioned Land Use permits issued; 12 were in Shoreland zoning and 2 were within the floodplain,
requiring additional permits to be issued.

2018-2019

Planning Board Member Since:
Chris Maas — Chairman 2009

Lisa Laser 2015
Scott Wellman 2015
Denise Jackson 2019
Peter Robinson 2016
Louise Ringle 2017
Herbert Aumann 2017

The Planning Board meets the first Thursday of every month if there are any items on the agenda. You
need to submit your plans to the office at least 14 days prior to this meeting as it is necessary for the office to
notify the media and send letters to the abutters. The office has a list of the submission requirements that need
to be submitted to the office, should you have a project that needs to be reviewed by the Planning Board. You
can also find the requirements in our Land Use Ordinance at www.dover-foxcroft.org. All members of the
Planning Board are volunteers from the community. Their input and expertise are invaluable to the town. They
put in countless hours reviewing projects and a lot of times have to make unpopular decisions for the good of
the town. The town thanks them for all their help and support throughout the year and taking time out of their
busy lives to provide this service to their community. The Planning Board’s report follows this one.
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2018-2019

Board of Appeals Member Since:
Kurt Baird 2004

Paul Matulis 2014

Johanna Danforth Greenfield 2017

The board of appeals meets as needed to hear requests for variances or administrative appeals. There
were no appeals filed this year. The board of appeals members are all volunteers too and the town thanks them
as well for their time and dedication to the Town of Dover-Foxcroft.

Respectfully Submitted,

Brian Gaudet
Code Enforcement Officer

PLUMBING INSPECTOR

| Internal Plumbing Permits: Permits Issued - 38 Permits Approved — 36

| Subsurface Permits: Permits Issued — 20 Permits Approved — 18

Respectfully Submitted,

Bret Marshall
Local Plumbing Inspector
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PLANNING BOARD

The planning board had an eventful year. We had nine regular meetings. During that time we:

o Made revisions to the Shoreland Zoning Ordinance

o Approved a thrift store on Summer Street

o Approved a large addition to the Pleasant River Lumber Company

o Approved construction of two self storage facilities

o Approved expansion of Spruce Mill Farm and Kitchen on West Main Street
o Approved addition of second screen at Center Theatre

o Approved office relocations on East Main Street

In addition, most of the members participated in meetings of the land use ordinance committee. In those
meetings, moderated by the very capable Gwen Hilton, we worked on:

Streamlined permitting for uses that could be handled by the Code Enforcement Officer.
Solar Farms
Abandoned buildings, unfit houses, property maintenance

Structure for ordinances for Mega Projects (e.g. large projects for water extraction, wind farms, transportation
corridors, etc.). This structure does NOT include ordinances for specific mega-projects.

The chair would like to thank Brian Gaudet, our Code Enforcement Officer for all of his good work (and
patience). We also extend thanks to the planning board members Barry Hutchins, Lisa Laser, Pete Robinson,
Herb Aumann, and Denise Jackson. Finally, we appreciate all the time and effort expended by the members of
the land use ordinance committee; Paul Matulis, Louise Ringle, Stephen Grammont, George McKay, Barry
Hutchins, Ryan Edgerly, Herb Aumann, Denise Jackson and Pete Robinson. These groups worked
harmoniously together to keep this a warm, beautiful and business friendly community.

Chris Maas

Chair of the Planning Board
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FIRE DEPARTMENT

The Dover-Foxcroft Fire Department has had a busy year with 172 calls, everything from house fires to wires down
during major wind and rain storms.

The department is very lucky to have several men and women willing to serve on the department and protect the citizens
of our town. State training is mandated for members to keep abreast of all fire department equipment.

We have been blessed with a major donation to purchase new jaws equipment (battery powered) so our indigent auto
extraction will be faster and be able to go anywhere without hoses and motor being dragged along.

We received a grant for an exhaust removal system for all trucks. This helps remove diesel exhaust particles and toxic
gases that causes cancer in our firefighters.

The County EMA office placed a gas (LP) meter in Engine 922 to detect LP in our homes and businesses.

We had some bad luck with our ladder tower with a motor that was worn out. We still have it in the repair shop hoping to
have it back soon with a new motor which is much cheaper than a new truck.

Our fund raising endeavors included the boot drive, fire prevention letters and food booth at the Piscataquis Valley Fair.
The fishing derby that started nine years ago has really become a fun event at Sebec Lake.

Teaching fire prevention in our schools is always a top priority with Lt. Ryan Taylor, Ralph Lewis, Capt. Eric Berce and
Gary Sudsbury leading the way.

Together the budget committee and protection board reviews the fire department budget line by line. It has worked well
and | expect it will continue in the upcoming years.

We continue to write grants to various programs to secure funding for the fire department needs.. A small town like ours
with limited funds cannot fund all our needs without these grant programs.

In closing, I can’t say enough good things about the men and women of the department and their families for the endless
hours we all spend at fires, training and community activities. Without your dedication, a lot of things that are taken for
granted would not get done.

Respectfully Submitted,

Joseph R. Guyotte

Fire Chief
DOVER-FOXCROFT FIRE DEPARTMENT INCIDENTS 2018-2019
Grass Fires 5 | Assist Mayo 33
Motor Vehicle 10-55 28 | Chimney Fire 3
Snowmobile 1 | Misc. 13
Fire Alarm 13 | Wire/Trees 39
Structure Fires 8 | Building Collapse 1
Mutual Aid Given 18 | Boat Fire 1
LPG 6 | TOTAL CALLS 169
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TOWN WARDEN

The law of “No burning without a permit in hand” has saved the State and Towns a lot of unnecessary
fire calls. Our policy of “No burning before 5 pm” with the exception of rainy days and when there’s snow on
the ground, verbal permit is working.

Anyone can now go on line to www.maine.gov to get a fire permit.

Anyone needing a burn permit can call any of the following Town Wardens:

Chief Warden Joseph R. Guyotte 564-2187 or 343-2267
Deputy Warden | Bonnie Guyotte 564-2187
Deputy Warden | Rick Pembroke 564-3475
Deputy Warden | Jerry Rollins 564-3650
Deputy Warden | Gary Sudsbury 564-2931
Deputy Warden | Ralph Lewis 564-3292

Respectfully Submitted,

Joseph R. Guyotte

Chief Fire Warden of Dover-Foxcroft

DOVER-FOXCROFT FIRE DEPARTMENT VOLUNTEERS

OFFICERS FIREFIGHTERS
Joseph R Guyotte Fire Chief Mike Nelson
Patrick (Rick) Pembroke | Deputy Chief | Chad Raymond
Jerry Rollins Asst. Chief Ryan London

Eric Berce Captain Todd Daigle

John Guyotte Captain Justin Gilbert
Brian Gaudet Lieutenant Chris Melia

Ryan Taylor Lieutenant Eric Melia

Dennis Stewart Lieutenant William Reithmuller
Mark Young Secretary Ben Fagan

Gary Sudsbury, Sr. Safety Officer | Sammy Towner
Holly Bell Dispatch John Majewski
Francis Sevene Dispatch Tim Perkins

Ralph E. Lewis Houseman Jared Rollins
FIREFIGHTERS Michael Sutton
Brian Mullis

Rob Durgin J.V. FIREFIGHTERS
Mark Robinson AJ Atkinson

Ryan Richardson Kaylee Durgin
Terry Grant Pierce Fagan

RJ Nelson Trevin Guyotte
Travis Salley Sean Leland

Cody Coiley Carter Merrill
Jacob Diamond Samuel Robinson
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DOVER-FOXCROFT POLICE DEPARTMENT

182 East Main Street
Dover-Foxcroft, Maine 04426
Phone: (207) 564-8021, Fax: (207) 564-7881
doverpd@doverfoxcroftpolice.com

www.dover-foxcroft.org

Greetings,

To say that we have been busy this year would be an understatement. Our department saw a significant increase
in criminal filings in 2019. The year-end statistics, while not complete at the time of inquiry, showed nearly 130
criminal filings. That is nearly a 33% increase over recent years. These crimes were of various natures,
including serious class A, B and C felonies such as sexual assault, domestic violence assault and gun related
charges to name a few.

Our agency also saw the continuation of our relationship with victim services groups and the use of our regional
Child Advocacy Center (CAC) here in our police department. The CAC saw a dramatic increase in the number
of interviews that were conducted. Nearly 40 forensic interviews were conducted by area agencies. This
represents a significant increase over the estimated projected number we initially had at the inception (15
yearly). This saved investigators, child advocacy personnel and support services workers hours of travel to the
next nearest CAC in Bangor.

The partnership that we have established with SeDoMoCha (RSU #68) and Foxcroft Academy to start a School
Resource Officer (SRO) program has paid off. This has led to the defusing of several delicate situations
regarding students and/or the general public at the campuses. The program has been well received by students,
their families, staff members and administrators in the ability to provide law enforcement support of critical and
sensitive situations. The position saw the departure of the original employee and the replacement with a highly
professional and well trained person.

Our aptitude continues to grow as does our service to the community. We look forward to addressing the needs
of the community at large and improve services going forward into the new year.

As always, we are here to serve you.

Respectfully,

Ryan P. Reardon
Chief of Police
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DOVER-FOXCROFT POLICE DEPARTMENT

07/01/2018 - 06/30/2019

ADULT POLICE ARRESTS/SUMMONS (> 18 Years Old)

Charge Total |Charge Total
ALCOHOL OFFENSE 1 |PASSING A STOPPED SCHOOL BUS 1
ASSAULT 5 |POSSESSION OF HYPODERMIC APPARATUS| 1
ASSAULT ON AN OFFICER 1 |POSSESSION OF MARIJUANA 1
ATTACHING FALSE PLATES 2 |REFUSING TO SUBMIT TO ARREST 1
BURGLARY, NON-RESIDENT, FORCIBLE ENTRY 1 |REGISTRATION VIOLATION >150 DAYS 2
BURGLARY, RESID, UNLAWFUL ENTRY 1 |SPEEDING>30 MPH 1
DISORDERLY CONDUCT, NOISE 1 |TAMPERING W/WITNESS, INFORM, VICTIM | 1
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE ASSAULT 9 |TERRORIZING 1
FALSE PUBLIC ALARM/REPORT 1 |THEFT BY UNAUTHORIZED TAKING 4
FT LICENSE DOG 2 |THEFT OF SERVICES 1
FT NOTIFY INFO ON MV ACCIDENT 1 |THEFT, MISUSE OF IDENTIFICATION 1
FT TO REGISTER AS SEX OFFENDER 1 |THEFT, PROPERTY FROM MOTOR VEHICLE | 1
LEAVING THE SCENE OF AN ACCIDENT 1 |THEFT, PROPERTY, BICYCLE 1
NEGOTIATE WORTHLESS INSTRUMENT 5 |THEFT, PROPERTY, SHOPLIFTING 4
OBSTRUCTING REPORT OF A CRIME 1 |THREATENING, CRIMINAL 1
OPERATING AFTER SUSPENSION/REVOCATION 14 |TRESPASS, CRIMINAL 3
OAS/OAR - 3PRIORS 3 |UNLAWFUL POSSESSION OF SCHED. DRUGS| 1
OPERATING W/EXPIRED LICENSE >30 DAYS 1 |USE OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA 1
OPERATING WITHOUT A LICENSE 4  |VIOLATION OF PROBATION 3
oul 3 |VIOLATION OF PROTECTIVE ORDER 4
OUl - 1PRIORS 1 |VIOLATION OF RELEASE CONDITIONS 9
OUl - 2PRIOR 1 |WARRANT ARREST 18
OUI - INJURY 1
OUI, CRIMINAL 12
TOTAL INCIDENTS 122 |TOTAL ARRESTS/SUMMONS 134
07/01/2018 - 06/30/2019

JUVENILE POLICE ARRESTS/SUMMONS (< 18 Years Old)
Charge Total |Charge Total
ASSAULT 1 |POSSESSION OF MARIJUANA 1
BURGLARY 1 |REFUSING TO SUBMIT TO ARREST 1
CRIMINAL TRESPASS 1 |THEFT BY UNAUTHORIZED TAKING 1
TOTAL INCIDENTS 6 |TOTAL ARRESTS/SUMMONS 6
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POLICE INCIDENTS - 07/01/2018 TO 06/30/2019

TYPE TOTAL TYPE TOTAL
ABANDONED VEHICLE 3 LITTERING/POLLUTION PROBLEM 2
ADMIN DELIVERY 17 LOCKOUT VEHICLE 88
AGENCY ASSIST 156 LOITERING 2
ALARM 84 LOST OR FOUND PROPERTY 36
ALCOHOL OFFENSE 2 MESSAGE DELIVERED 2
AMBULANCE OR MEDICAL ASSIST 45 MISSING PERSON 14
ANIMALBITE 1 MOTORCYCLE/RECREATION VEH PROB 4
ANIMAL PROBLEM 47 MOTORIST ASSISTT - BATTERY
ASSAULT NO WEAPON, AGG INJURY MOTORIST ASSISTT - GAS 4
ASSAULT, POLICE, SIMPLE 1 MOTORIST ASSISTT - MISC 14
ASSAULT, SIMPLE 17 MOTORIST ASSISTT - TIRE 3
ATTEMPT TO LOCATE 3 NOISE PROBLEM 25
BAIL SEARCH 3 NONSUFFICIENT FUNDS CHECK
BURGLARY, NON-RES, FORCIBLE ENTRY 2 NOT CLASSIFIED
BURGLARY, NON-RES, UNLAWFUL ENTRY 3 OBSTRUCTING JUSICE 27
BURGLARY, RESID, FORCIBLE ENTRY 1 OTHER OFFENSES - ALL 4
BURGLARY, RESID, UNLAWFUL ENTRY 3 OVERTIME DETAIL
CHILD ABUSE OR NEGLECT 1 PARKING PROBLEM 17
CITIZEN ASSIST 86 POLICE INFORMATION 147
CITIZEN DISPUTE 4 PROBATION/PAROLE VIOLATION 3
CITY ORDINANCE VIOLATION 1 PROPERTY CHECK 61
CIVILMATTER 34 PROPERTY DAMAGE/NON-VANDALISM 7
COMMUNICATIONS OFFENSE 10 PROPERTY WATCH
CONT SUBS/ POSSESSION MARIJUANA 2 PUBLIC SERVICE 4
CONT SUBS/ SALE/MANUFACTURE SYNTHETIC RECKLESS CONDUCT 11
CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE - DRUG EQUIP 1 RECORDS CHECK FOR AFT PAPERWORK 1
COURT SERVICE 41 RESISTING/ INTERFERING W/ POLICE 23
CRIMINAL MISCHIEF 32 SEX OFFENDER REGISTRATION VIOL 2
CUSTODIAL INTERFERENCE SEX OFFENSES 3
DEAD BODY SUICIDE ATTEMPT 2
DESIGNATED PATROL SUICIDE THREAT 6
DISORDERLY CONDUCT 32 SUSPICIOUS PERSON/CIRCUMSTANCES 5
DUI ALCOHOL OR DRUGS 9 TRAFFIC ACCIDENT, CRUISER 2
EMOTIONAL/BEHAVIOR PROBLEMS 22 TRAFFIC ACCIDENT, NONREP 18
ERRATIC VEHICLE OPERATION 110  |TRAFFIC ACCIDENT, PERS INJURY 20
ESCORT 6 TRAFFIC ACCIDENT, PROP DAMAGE 154
FAMILY FIGHT 29 TRAFFIC ACCIDENT/ HIT AND RUN 5
FIREWORKS 4 TRAFFICHAZARD 33
FRAUD 26 THREATENING 19
HARASSMENT 48 TRAFFIC OFFENSE 43
INTOXICATED PERSON 11 TOWED VEHICLE 5
JUVENILE PROBLEM 46 THEFT, PROPERTY, BICYCLE

JUVENILE RUNAWAY

THEFT, PROPERTY, BUILDING
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POLICE INCIDENTS - 07/01/2018 TO 06/30/2019
TYPE TOTAL TYPE TOTAL

THEFT, PROPERTY, MOTOR VEHICLE 5  |VANDALISM 2
THEFT, PROPERTY, OTHER 28 |VEHICLE SERIAL # INSPECTION 6
THEFT, PROPERTY, SHOPLIFTING 5  |VIOLATION OF PROTECTION ORDER 8
THEFT, PROPERTY, VEHICLE PARTS 1 |VIOLATION OF RELEASE CONDITION 9
THEFT, VEHICLE: AUTOMOBILE 2 |WANTED OUT - PERSON 25
TRAINING 2 |WARRANT ARREST 20
TRESPASSING 29 |WEAPON PROBLEM 3
UNSECURE PREMISES 8  |WELFARE CHECK 214
UTILITY PROBLEM 12

TOTAL INCIDENTS 2183

07/01/2018 - 06/30/2019

TRAFFIC CITATION SUMMONSES

Violation Total |Violation Total
OPERATING VEHICLE W/O LICENSE 1 |FT USESTOP SIGNALS 1
OPERATING WITH EXPIRED LICENSE <90 DAYS 1 |SPEEDING1-29 OVER 15
OPERATING W EXPIRED LICENSE > 30 DAYS 1 |OPERATING WHEN LICENSE SUSP/REVOKED 2
FT PRODUCT LICENSE/PERMIT 1 |RESIDENTS REQUIRED TO REGISTER 1
FT PRODUCE EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE 12 |REGISTRATION VIOLATION < 150 DAYS 6
FT DISPLAY CURRENT/VALID INSPECTION CERT | 8 |REGISTRATION VIOLATION > 150 DAYS 1
IMPROPER PASSING 1 |NO CODEENTERED 1

TOTAL SUMMONS 52

PUBLIC WORKS

The Public Works Department now consists of eight full time employees after hiring Jason Durgin, one of
which is a mechanic. In the winter months we employ four additional part timers for snow removal.

The public works crew worked on several different projects this year. Some of which consisted of:

Added gravel on Klimavicz Road

Replaced fabric and added gravel to the west end of Bolton Road

Reclaimed and paved Dwelley Avenue, Grange Street, Grove Street, Harvey Street, Pleasant Street

Made drainage improvements, reground and paved Davis Street

Reclaimed section of Parsons Landing Road

Added crack seal to 500 ft. of Dawes Road

Shim/overlay: Autumn Avenue, Danforth Street, Davis Street, Forest Street, Hancock Street, %2 Pleasant Street

Put up winter sand

Screened Gravel at Pit

As always I’d like to thank my crew for their hard work and dedication throughout the year. I appreciate their
efforts daily.

Respectfully Submitted,

Geoff Chambers
Public Works Supervisor
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SOLID WASTE

For the period 1 Jul 2018 through 30 Jun 2019 the Dover-Foxcroft Regional Recycling Center received,
processed, shipped, and sold the following materials.

2.04 Tons of Sorted Office Paper

59.72 Tons of Old Newsprint

226 Tons of Corrugated Cardboard

17.91 Tons of Assorted Food Grade Plastics
16.62 Tons of Mixed Paperboard (non corrugated)
10.76 Tons of Aluminum/Steel Cans

208 Tons of Appliances & other Scrap Metals

We also received, processed, and shipped out the following materials.

300 Tons of Brush Chips

56.40 Tons of Wood Ash

19.28 Tons of CRT’s (Computer monitors and TV’s )
2 Tons of Old Printers

2.9 Tons of Computer Towers

1.70 Tons of Mixed Electronics

26 Boxes of Fluorescent Lamps

49.19 Tons of Sheetrock Material

At our demolition site we landfilled over 300 tons of bulky waste (furniture, shingles, bathroom fixtures, and
large plastic/fiberglass items). We also shipped out several hundred pounds of household hazardous waste, and
several hundred gallons of anti-freeze and old gas. We are receiving revenue for all materials except glass
which we landfill.

Be aware that our municipal waste is now transported to the new Coastal Facility in Hampden. Certain
materials can’t be put in the trash anymore. For a list of these items please pick-up a flyer at the recycling center
or transfer station. Most of these items will go into the demolition container.

Respectfully Submitted,

Joseph Sands
Director, Solid Waste and Recycling GO PACKERS!

Solid Waste/Recycling Department Hours
Monday - 9:00 AM - 5:00 PM
Tuesday - closed
Wednesday - 10:00 AM - 6:00 PM

9:00 AM - 5:00 PM (Winter)
Thursday - closed

Friday - 9:00 AM - 5:00 PM
Saturday - 8:00 AM - 4:00 PM
Sunday - closed

See our website for updates
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WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
To the Citizens of Dover-Foxcroft:

This year this facility received and treated 78.123 million gallons of wastewater, 92.2 tons of organic waste,
103.1 tons of total suspended solids with overall treatment efficiency of 97 to 98%.

Description of Collection System

The Town of Dover-Foxcroft currently maintains a centralized wastewater collection system consisting of
approximately 20.7 miles (109,218 linear feet) of gravity sewer mains and force mains, three wastewater pump
stations and 537 sewer manholes. To date, all town owned sewer collection system has been upgraded to new
PVC pipe. It has taken place over the last 25 years. With proper design and installation, it has been predicted
that this sewer collection system should last over 100 years. With this said the town should not need to address
any major upgrades of the sewer collection system for at least 75 years.

In addition to the public sewer system, the town oversees 15.1 miles (79,582 linear feet) of sewer service lines.
The majority of our emergency services calls are due to this portion of the sewer system. The reason for this is
some of the services are still old clay tile, asbestos cement, brick, or other substandard materials. Maintenance
problems such as root intrusion, leaky sections, and structural deficiencies are associated with these substandard
materials. They cause sewer line blockages and surcharge-induced flooding. If your sewer service consists of
these substandard materials, you should have your sewer service line upgraded to prevent costly and
inconvenient service calls.

Collection System Performance

The Town of Dover-Foxcroft Wastewater Department works hard to eliminate the overflows in the system.
This is accomplished by constant preventive maintenance. Preventive maintenance consists of sewer cleaning
and video inspection. The sewer cleaning keeps the wastewater flowing freely to the treatment plant. Video
inspection allows us to pin point locations of problem areas, such as root intrusions, grease build up, broken
pipe, and sources of infiltration and inflow (I/1).

There are a number of ways that clean water can enter the system.
6 Connections of roof drains, sump pumps, cellar/foundation drains
6 Connected storm drain system & catch basins
0 Remaining sections of substandard sewer system that are leaky

The town has disconnected all storm drains and catch basins from the town’s sanitary sewer system. Also, the
town has upgraded all of the substandard, leaky sewer lines. The replacement of these lines is very expensive
and we are still seeing increased flows during wet weather storm events. For instance, when we have a rain
event of 2 inches it will more than double our influent flows. Most, if not all, is a result of private 1/1 water still
entering the sanitary sewer system! This excess water makes the pump stations work 2 to 3 times longer and
harder and results in higher electrical consumption and increased cost. You, as a homeowner or business
owner, can help by preventing any water on your property that does not need to be treated from entering the
sanitary sewer. If you have sumps, cellar, roof or yard drains hooked into public sewer lines, please have them
disconnected. These connections, according to “town of Dover-Foxcroft, 2009 Sewer Ordinance” are
ILLEGAL and could lead to enforcement action and added surcharge fee to your sewer bill. And if these illegal
connections are not disconnected, the money spent on upgrading the public sewer system is less effective.
PLEASE do your part so we can reduce our cost of treatment.

Combined Sewer Overflows (CSO’s) were installed in the collection system to minimize damage from

surcharge-induced flooding. Since the late 1980’s, the Town has work very hard at eliminating CSO’s events. |
am pleased to announce that no CSO events occurred during this reporting period.
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This year, we started a formal, proactive system-wide maintenance program. This plan was mandated by State
of Maine Department of Environmental Protection and entails having a written collection system maintenance
program. Simply put, the written program stipulates what we have for a collections system and how we plan on
keeping it maintained.

This year, the department cleaned 1270 feet of sewer lines, inspected 61 manholes, responded to eight sewer
service calls, several dig safe requests, four sewer disconnects, rebuilt 10 manhole chimneys, and addressed
several manhole cover elevations.

Treatment Plant

The Dover-Foxcroft Wastewater Treatment Facility is looking and operating well for starting our 29th year of
operation. The system is running as designed.

The facility consists of pretreatment operation that includes grit removal and screening, followed by three
aerated lagoons operated in series, chlorination, and dechlorination. The pretreatment process removed 22
cubic feet of grit and 51.5 cubic feet of screenings this year. Removing these solids from the waste stream
positively impacts the aerated lagoon treatment system. The pretreatment process has removed 2,723.3 cubic
feet of grit and 921 cubic feet of screening to date.

Sludge removal & dewatering system was put on line in 2007. We removed the sludge that accumulated in
lagoon #2 in 2008 & 2015, lagoon #3 in 2009 & 2016 and a large portion of lagoon 1 in 2010, 2011 and 2017.
All three lagoons are at acceptable conditions. We will continue to keep track of and remove sludge as needed.

Before the sludge removal process and the new lagoon #1 aeration system, our treatment efficiency was rarely
above 90% but now we are seeing 95% and above, consistently.

The chlorination and dechlorination systems work as designed this year. The chlorination system is a process
that significantly reduces the pathogenic (disease causing) organisms that we discharge to the Piscataquis River.
The de-chlorination system is a process that reduces the chlorine levels that is acceptable to discharge into the
environment.

Town of Dover-Foxcroft Wastewater Treatment Facility

2017-2018 Annual Performance

Month mgd min = max ppm #/day ppm #lday #100ml | ppm - dailymax| ~ CALCULATED
License Limit 0.80 6.0 | 90 30 334 30 334 64 0.20 85% 85%
July 18 ND
August '18 0.24 70 74 3 6 3 5 5 NT 96 98
September '18 0.17 70 0 72 6 9 4 5 45 NT 96 97
October 18 0.19 71 13 8 7 3 3 NT NT 96 98
November '18 0.36 72 14 3 11 2 4.9 NT NT 97 98
December ‘18 0.25 731 74 6 11 3 5 NT NT 97 98
January '19 0.26 721 74 6 9 5 7 NT NT 97 98
February '19 0.20 68 | 72 8 15 5 10 NT NT 97 98
March '19 0.25 69 | 72 10 19 5 8 NT NT 97 98
April '19 0.78 7.0 75 17 107 9 56 NT NT 97 98
May '19 0.57 7.3 8.7 18 84 13 64 7 0.04 97 98
June '19 0.32 73179 24 55 17 40 19 NT 96 98

NT - NOT TESTED
ND - DO DISCHARGE

Respectfully Submitted,
William J. Littlefield, Wastewater Director
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MAYO REGIONAL HOSPITAL

HIGHLIGHTS

2019 HAD #4 Annual Report to the Communities

As we wrap up another year and decade at Mayo Regional
Hospital, we have seen many changes that will be critical to
our success.

Mayo/Northern Light Health Merger -

In 2019, Mayo continued its multi-year effort to successfully
merge into Northern Light Healthcare. 2019 proved to be the
busiest year yet! In February, the Mayo Board voted to enter
into the Definitive Agreement and Plan for Merger. In April,
four community education forums were held and
subsequently 13 town meetings and votes. 12 of the 13
communities in the HAD affirmatively supported the merger.

In June, LD 1708, sponsored by Representative Norm Higgins
and co-sponsored by Senator Davis, Representatives Stearns
and Foster, successfully passed the State legislature. The bill

was signed into law by Governor Mills on June 28.

We are currently awaiting the results of the Certificate of
Need review, which has not been received as of this writing.
If that is affirmative, the Boards would vote again and the
merger could be complete by the end of January 2020.

-Amanda Young

Physician’s Assistant
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KEY STATISTICS 2019

Admissions: 1,203

Total patient days: 4,225
Average daily census: 11.6
Inpatients: 1,203

Births: 95

Surgeries: 1,264
Radiology: 20,951

Labs: 119,723

Oncology: 1,514

Physician office visits: 46,361
ED visits: 10,503
Ambulance runs: 3,934

Psychiatry: 2,794

Gross patient service revenue:
$93,135,473

Free Care and Bad Debt:
$6,657,450

Contractual adjustment:
$36,828,382

Net Revenue:
$53,668,358

Salaries and Benefits:
$34,650,518

Total expenses:
$57,001,802

Operating gain/(loss):
($3,333,444)

Mayo

Regional Hospital

Together, We're Better.



Guilford -

In April 2019, due to a lack of available providers, Mayo made the difficult decision to close its long-
time clinic in Guilford. The patients were transitioned to other clinics within and outside of the Mayo
system. This was not something we wished to do, but rather a stark reminder of the difficulty
recruiting to rural healthcare.

ENT -

In July, Mayo said goodbye to one of its beloved providers, Dr. Brian Miller. Dr. Miller retired after
almost a decade of service to the communities that he practiced in; Dover Foxcroft, Millinocket and
Lincoln. He is greatly missed and we certainly wish him well!

Orthopedics -

In further collaboration with our partners at Down East Orthopedics, we added the services of Dr. Jake
Brooks in 2019. He joined the practice with Dr. Bill Rice and Dr. Ken Morse, his colleague at DEO who
has been coming to Mayo for several years. We appreciate the willingness of our providers to have
creative practices where they come to Dover Foxcroft to see patients several times per month to
augment the practice of our own surgeon, Dr. Rice. It is a highly qualified team!

Workforce updates -

Mayo Regional Hospital continues to recruit skilled providers that best meet specific community needs.
The following providers have been added to our team in 2019 to further enhance access to healthcare
in our region.

Amanda Young, PA-C
Nancy Honeychuck, FNP
Hosam Abdallah, MD
Robin Willoughby, CRNA
Jacob Brooks, DO
Melissa Woody, PA-C
Mike Pike, FNP

Marie Vienneau, BSN, FACHE Mayo %

Regional Hospital

Together, We're Better.

For questions or further information please contact: Marie Vienneau, President & CEO: 564-4251
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THOMPSON FREE LIBRARY

The Thompson Free Library continues to develop programs and
services in support of its mission to strengthen and serve our community,
inspire learning, advance and create knowledge, and promote the spirit of
human experiences and personal relationships.

The library provides an up-to-date collection of materials for all ages. In addition to books and media in
many formats including audiobooks, movies, large print books, and graphic novels, library users can borrow
equipment like a telescope and microscope, check out a vehicle pass to Maine State Parks, and get free
admission to the Maine Discovery Museum in Bangor. Users can search for and request library materials
through our online catalog. The new Kids Catalog allows simplified searching by image, topic, and age group.
Users can also check out ebooks and digital audiobooks through the Maine InfoNet Download Library, and
access free resources for career, genealogy, language learning, test prep and more through the Maine Digital
Library. Find these on our website: www.thompson.lib.me.us.

The library encourages a love of reading through our early
literacy programs. Every Thursday morning, families can join
youth services librarian Michelle Fagan for stories, songs, and
play. This year Ms. Michelle also offered bedtime stories on
Tuesday evenings. New to TFL, Reading with Erma began in the
summer of 2018. Young readers practiced their literacy skills with
Erma, a Reading Education Assistance Dog, every Wednesday
throughout the summer vacation months. Many thanks to April Taylor for bringing Erma to TFL. During the
school year, Ms. Michelle continued to bring library services, including story times and book talks, to
SeDoMoCha and the YMCA. To better support local schools, the library now offers all students and educators
at SeDoMoCha and Foxcroft Academy a free library card, regardless of residency.

The library hosts many activities for children, teens, and adults.
Special children’s events included a visit by parrots from Siesta
Sanctuary, which drew record attendance, and a vacation science camp
led by Alicia Millette, who also offered STEM (Science, Technology,
Engineering, and Mathematics) programs for teens. Youth services
expanded to include an afterschool arts program and a teen advisory
board, which helped provide feedback about library services. For
adults interested in learning new skills, TFL’s 101 Series hosted local
experts on how to make homemade veggie soup, construct journals out
of recycled materials, practice mindfulness, and more. New adult
programs included a philosophy discussion group and monthly free movie night. The Maine Humanities
Council sponsored a book discussion series and a community poetry reading, and the James Brown Lecture
Series brought bestselling Maine mystery writer Paul Doiron. Other speakers included Anne Gass, Roger Guay,
Wesley McNair, Jeffrey Merrill Sr., and Aislinn Sarnacki.

The library supports the educational goals of community members of all ages. Visit the library for
research help, technology assistance, and access to public computers and Wi-Fi. High-speed internet service is
provided by the Maine School and Library Network. Those interested in connecting with the past can find local
history materials in the Maine Room, and browse our collection of digitized Piscataquis Observers online.
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The Voices from HOME Oral History Project continues to collect and preserve stories about our
region’s history. Community members can borrow a digital audio recorder to record the memories of a friend or
family member. The library welcomes use of its community room by local groups and organizations for
meetings, workshops, and events. The library also displays the work of local artists. This year, our featured
artists were: Mystie Belanger, Jo Eaton, Michelle Fagan, Wayne Finkle, Eric Leif Johnsen, Lisa Laser, Steve
Maines, Pamela Pultz, Teresa Kennedy Sprague, Rogan Taylor, the Milo Art Guild, and local students.

Each year the library provides detailed statistics
to the Maine State Library.

Highlights of Fiscal Year 2018-2019 data include:

e Library visits: 34,092

Registered library users: 1,992

e Circulation of physical materials:
36,019

e Circulation of ebooks and digital

audiobooks: 1,878

Community room uses: 105

Public computer sessions: 1,998

Library programs: 295

Program attendance: 3,228

The library benefits from collaboration with many other organizations in our community. The Center
Theatre, the Commons at Central Hall, Pine Tree Hospice, Piscataquis County Soil and Water Conservation
District, and the Piscataquis Regional Food Center participated in joint projects with the library this year. Thank
you to all who use and support the library, including the Thompson Free Library Association, volunteers Pat
Juska, Alex Shaffer, and Charlotte Turner, and our committed library staff Kim Brawn, Michelle Fagan, Tom
Lyford and Valerie Talmadge.

Respectfully submitted,

Greta Schroeder )
Director of Library Services ’%
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PISCATAQUIS COUNTY

ﬁ‘u ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

20 YEARS

2020 Report

WHO WE ARE
PCEDC is a collaborative grass roots effort created in 1997 by county residents interested in promoting economic
development in Piscataquis County. We celebrated our 20" anniversary in 2018.

OUR MISSION

The Piscataquis County Economic Development Council (PCEDC) seeks to leverage local, county, state and
federal resources to promote and encourage private and public investment within Piscataquis County, Maine. The goal is
to stimulate long-term sustainable economic development and job growth in the region.

VISION

Piscataquis County will have a strong, diverse, and vibrant economy that offers higher quality jobs to support
strong, diverse, and vibrant families and communities.A strong economy is one that is wealth generating, able to survive
national economic downturns, productive, and efficient. It’s also diverse, containing a numerous, healthy combination of
manufacturing, service, and retail businesses. Such an economy must be a vibrant one that values creativity, supports
leadership, and is knowledge based. The resulting higher quality jobs will be able to financially sustain individuals,
families, and communities.

PCEDC will continue to build a prosperous future of Piscataquis County for everyone by growing our population,
ensuring a viable future for our youth, providing opportunities for lifelong learning and employment, promoting tourism
and recreation promotion and advocating for this county at multiple levels in order to ensure a quality of life for all of our
residents. Most importantly, we will partner with all County stakeholders to revive our economy and protect our citizens
as we recover from the COVID-19 pandemic.

PCEDC Strategic Goals for 2020 and Beyond:

1. Develop and promote a creative and diverse economy;

2. Encourage entrepreneurs while strengthening existing businesses;
3. Modernize our infrastructure, both civic and tourism;

4. Increase lifelong educational and cultural opportunities;

5

6

. Engage our communities in economic development by facilitating collaboration and partnerships; and
. Continue work on Broadband Initiatives.

PCEDC Initiatives & Programs for 2020 (partial list):
- Work with the County Commission, businesses and communities of Piscataquis County to recover from the
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic
- Continue to implement Brownfields projects to benefit County communities
- Support businesses and municipalities in obtaining Community Development Block Grants
- Expand resources for economic and community development in the County
- Develop a new Strategic Plan for the PCEDC to guide its operations for the next five years
- Engage the County Commission and all stakeholders to draft a PC Economic Development Strategy
- Provide ongoing community support through the Helping Hands with Hearts initiative

Respectfully submitted,

PCEDC 2020 Executive Committee: Denise Buzzelli (President), Tom Goulette (Vice-President), Lucas Butler
(Treasurer), Angela Arno (Secretary), Jim Annis (ex officio), Jack Clukey, James Macomber, Scott Moulton, Michelle
McMahon, Thelma Reagan, Jenny Ward, Paul Stearns, Kathy White

Staff: John Shea (Executive Director) & Georgia Underwood (Community Development Specialist).
50 Mayo Street, Dover-Foxcroft, ME 04426 www.pcedc.org 207.564.3638
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KIWANIS PARK - DOVER-FOXCROFI, MAINE

(Established 1989)

The Kiwanis Gazebo and Park area is maintained by the Kiwanis Club of Dover-Foxcroft.
The park is open to the public daily and closes at sunset.
The gazebo may be reserved for weddings, receptions, reunions, and other community events
and includes electricity, water and restroom facilities.
To reserve a date for your event call:
Town of Dover-Foxcroft, Municipal Offices, 564-3318 x 1023

Visit the Gazebo, Gardens, Playground, Picnic Area and Fishing Pond

For more information about Kiwanis Park call: Chair, Bob Moore at -717-3337
Read History of Kiwanis Park - www.doverfoxcroftkiwanis.org

Al proceeds received will be used for the maintenance, upkeep and improvements to the Gazebo and Kiwanis Park area

Kiwanis is a global organization of volunteers dedicated to changing the world one child and one community at a time
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TOWN OF DOVER-FOXCROFT - For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
Brantner, Thibodeau & Associates - Certified Public Accountants

/lwww.btacpa.com
Brantner, Thibodeau & Associates, CPAs was established in 1980 and has been performing the

Town of Dover-Foxcroft’s audit since 1990.

AUDIT — TABLE OF CONTENTS (town report pages 40-101) Statement Page
Independent Auditor's Report 4-5
Required Supplementary Information

Management's Discussion and Analysis 6-14

Basic Financial Statements
Government-wide Financial Statements

Statement of net position/Statement of activities 1-2 15-16
Fund Financial Statements
Balance sheet - governmental funds 3 17
Reconciliation of the governmental funds balance
sheet to the statement of net position 3A 18
Statement of revenues, expenditures and changes
in fund balances - governmental funds 4 19

Reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances of governmental funds to
the statement of activities 4A 20

Statement of net position - proprietary fund 5 21

Statements of revenues, expenses and changes in

fund net position - proprietary fund 6 22
Statement of cash flows - proprietary fund 7 23
Statement of fiduciary net position — fiduciary funds 8 24
Statement of changes in fiduciary net position — fiduciary funds 9 25

Notes to basic financial statements/Other Post Retirement Benefit Plan (OPEB) 26-51
Required Supplementary Information Exhibit
Budget and actual (with variances) - general fund 1 52
Participating Local Districts Plan 2-5 53-56
Schedule of changes in Net OPEB (Other Post Retirement Benefit Plan) 6 57
Other Supplementary Information Schedule
Combining schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in
fund balances - permanent fund and special revenue fund trusts 1 58
Schedule of permanent fund and special revenue fund trust balances 2 59
Combining schedule of changes in net position-private purpose trust funds 3 60
Schedule of private purpose trust funds balances 4 61
Taxes receivable, tax liens and tax acquired property - general fund 5 62
Other Report
Independent auditor’s report on internal control over financial reporting
and on compliance and other matters based on an audit of financial
statements performed in accordance with
Governmental Auditing Standards 63-64
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ADDITIONS TO CEMETERY TRUST FUND

PERPETUAL CARE

| YEAR ENDING - JUNE 30, 2019 |

| NAME CEMETERY/LOT AMOUNT |
Brian Westman Dover Cemetery, Poole Section 1,000.00

Lot 27, Spaces 3,4,5,6

Jonathan Lee Webber Dover Cemetery, Poole Section 1,000.00
Lot 26, Spaces 1,2,3,4

James E Bell Pine Grove Annex 250.00
Lot 96A, Space 6

Heirs of Edward F Hobbs East Pine Grove Cemetery 900.00
Lot 27E, Spaces 4,5,6

$3,150.00

TOWN OF DOVER-FOXCROFT CEMETERIES

NAME OF CEMETERY LOCATION

Dover Vaughn Road

East Dover East Dover Road
South Dover Bangor Road

Boss Anderson Road
Foxcroft Center/Steadman’s Foxcroft Center
Gray West Main Street
Lee Lee Cemetery Road

Parson’s Landing

Parson’s Landing Road
Pine Grove/Brann’s Mills Notch/French Road .;ﬁfg*’
Rural Grove \ i 4 West Main Street G
McAllister 2 o ! DexteriRoge
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TAXES RECEIVABLE 2018-2019 - JUNE 30, 2019

ACCT __ NAME AMOUNT _ACCT ___ NAME AMOUNT
1106 *ARNO, JODY LYNN 166.42 179 *FARRAR, ROBERT A 1,058.94
564 *ASHFORD, VIOLET 1,322.88 2241 *FARRAR, ROBERT A 508.80
2672 BELL, JOHN 1,093.92 1173 *FERNOW, LESLEY M 13.97
1984 *BERGERON, DONOVAN G 2,167.59 3000 *FILLMORE, RACHEL L 928.56
2726 BERGERON, GLENN 1,999.16 1119 *FLINT, JODI MARIE 846.00
184 *BERNIER, ROBERT R JR 1,411.31 1808 *Foster, Curtis 1,861.36
1209 *BERUBE, BARBARA 309.32 998 *FOXCROFT PRINTING & SIGN 778.67
417 *BICKFORD, CARL 421.88 3076 GARY L STEVENS SR, 485.48
1412 *BICKFORD, CARL I 1,717.20 986 GLADSTONE, PHILIP A 2,122.12
911 BISHOP, DANIEL J 1,632.40 1223 *Grant, Matthew Ryan 381.60
1480 BISHOP, DANIEL J 199.28 1679 *HARMON, SANDRA 400.68

20 BLOCKLER, LORRIE ANN 841.64 2953 *HARMON, SANDRA 987.92
1556 BLOCKLER, LORRIE ANN 137.80 1404 HARRINGTON, JESSICA J 951.88
3133 BLOCKLER, NATHAN R HEIRS OF 80.56 671 HARVILLE, THOMAS W 795.00
3355 BLOCKLER, NATHAN R HEIRS OF 67.84 2198 *HAYES, MARTIN D 1,751.12
3360 BLOCKLER, NATHAN R HEIRS OF 95.40 1474 Heirs of June I Michalko 496.08
3018 BOELENS, CYNTHIA 1,282.60 1394 *HENDERSON, RAYMOND D 1,691.76
3311 BONSEY, GAYLE E 850.12 2959 HENDERSON, RAYMOND D 2,287.48
2099 *BOZZELLI, DANELLE 989.17 726 *HENSLER, DEBORAH J 2,346.84
1653 *BRAWN, FREDERICK D 898.88 502 HICKS, CHARLES 739.88
574 BRAYSON, MICHAEL A 730.34 3081 *HOBBS, ARTHUR A 396.44
849 BROWN, CLIFFORD J 779.10 104 HURD, DANIEL O 981.56
2791 BURNES, ALAN J JR 3,962.28 141 HURD, DANIEL O 379.48
1488 *CARLETON, MARJORIE B 1,642.99 304 HURD, DANIEL O 4,757.28
2911 CASWELL, BRYAN K 95.40 2388 HURD, DANIEL O 424,00
3396 *CASWELL, BRYAN K 1,257.16 2292 HURD, DANIEL O JR 2,469.80
2407 *CHADBOURNE, ERIK A 2,421.04 611 *HUTCHINSON, EUGENE W 2,270.52
1648 *COLE, THOMAS H 451.56 1982 JACKSON, PHOEBE 364.64
446 *Cookson-Fogg, Peggy E 481.24 1962 *JAWPLN, INC 913.72
3170 Cowing, Earl T 1,288.96 240 *KNOWLES, WILLIS E 361.67
844 *CURRIER, CAROL A 523.62 1338 *KRUZEWSKI, CHESTER J JR 2,164.52
1733 *CURTIS, JUDITH A 180.20 76 LAYTHE-RITTER, THERESA 445.69
2467 *DECENZO, HEIRS OF ANDREA M 1,002.97 1055 *LEE, RICHARD C 3,306.67
1046 *Deford, Frederick M 392.20 779 *LEIGHTON, RYAN W 500.00
700 *DERIENZO, ALPHONSE 16.96 2002 *LEVEILLE, RICHARD F 973.59
1695 DOORE, ELAINE HEIRS OF 750.48 2792 *LEVEILLE, RICHARD F JR 446.64
2834 DOORE, ELAINE HEIRS OF 657.20 978 LUNDGREN, CONRAD H 1,810.48
780 *DORMADY, SEAN 860.72 1784 *LYFORD, CHRISTOPHER 1,260.34
306 DORNAN, SHAWN V 1,411.92 2634 *MAINE GENERAL INVESTMENTS 1,054.19
1631 *DOW, NORA 1,250.80 342 MALOON, ARCHIE W JR 1,761.72
1215 *DSV SPV1, LLC 1,715.08 3261 MALOON, ARCHIE W JR 2,567.32
1682 *DYER, JOHN A 127.20 2101 MANN, KEITH 956.12
692 *EARLEY, ROBERT E 3,572.20 794 *MARKAKI, ELENI 1,674.80
2239 *EDDY, CHARLES 1,765.96 1951 *MARKAKI, ELENI 1,433.42

51 *EDGERLY, HERBERT E JR 3,133.36 1553 *MAXIMENKO, WALTER 3,112.90
1822 EDGERLY, JASON 1,405.56 2482 *MAYO, KEVIN 618.30
2749 *EMERSON, JEREMIAH D 5.69 1218 MAZEROLLE, HEIRS OF DAVID 460.04
1890 *ENGSTROM, JERRY E 1,180.84 74 *MCBRIDE, REBECCA E 773.80
1974 *ENGSTROM, JERRY E 195.04 915 *McCUE, KAREN 1,784.70
1990 *ENGSTROM, JERRY E 42.40 1266 *McCUE, KAREN 2,529.99
2041 *ENGSTROM, JERRY E 767.44 2231 *McCUE, KAREN 1,335.34
2897 *ENGSTROM, JERRY E 364.64 2249 *MCCUE, KAREN F 4,122.81
963 FAIRBROTHER, JAMES ALLEN 839.52 2233 MERCHANT, CLARENCE J IT 1,115.12

*Paid after June 30, 2019 and prior to printing Town Report
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TAXES RECEIVABLE 2018-2019 - JUNE 30, 2019

ACCT NAME AMOUNT  ACCT NAME AMOUNT
2006 *MERRILL, MARK 854.36 554 *SHAPLEIGH, STEVEN M 116.60
1414 MICHAEL J EWER, BILLIE-]JO 1,373.76 201 *SHEPHERD, DIANA ] 262.88
2901 MICHAEL J EWER, BILLIE-JO 1,259.28 2501 *SHEPHERD, DIANA ] 1,664.61
2646 *MICHAEL ZANNI, CARMELLA 38.16 895 *SKOMARS, JEFF 638.12
2219 *MICHAUD, TANYA M 342.38 981 *SKOMARS, JEFF 288.32
2487 Millette, Joseph G 1,522.16 1086 *SKOMARS, JEFF 133.56
2430 *MITCHELL, WILLIAM A 1,843.34 1090 *SKOMARS, JEFF 366.76

8 *MOORE, ALAN 2,279.00 3328 SLAMA, JOSHUA ] 519.40
253 MOORE, BARBARA J 2,071.24 787 SMALL, JEFFERY W 884.04
834 MOORE, BARBARA J 1,500.96 2222 SMALL, JEFFERY W 286.20

1352 MOORE, BARBARA J 566.04 1156 SMITH, DEAN ] 536.36
2073 MOORE, RICKY A 1,742.64 2998 *SMITH, GARY S 377.96
2217 MORELL, SARAH 1,950.40 1142 *SMITH, PATRICIA 286.20
2489 MORSE, SUZANNE E 1,818.96 2385 Smith, Susy M 2,077.44
810 *Nee, Jennifer D 172450 2011 SNAPP, ALICIA 1,931.32
1022 *O'BRIEN, DOLORES A 322.24 1979 SPACK, JOHN A 5,153.72
1604 *O'BRIEN, DOLORES A 50.88 2182 SPACK, JOHN A 517.28
2594 *PATRICIA NUTTER, LORRIE 563.93 471 SPAULDING, FREDERICK 298.92
229 *PAUL, STEPHEN M 939.16 2005 *SPENCER, MICHAEL W SR 795.59
495 PENNINGTON, HEIRS OF 1,659.59 2635 *SPROWLES FAMILY 195.55
1438 *PENQUIS LAND HOLDINGS LLC 1,477.64 1446 *STATEWIDE HOUSING 2,060.64
576 PIRES, JOHN JR 468.52 1074 STEPHEN, RONALD 864.96
2305 *PLEASANT RIVER PARTNERS 981.56 2272 *STEVENS, ANN 881.79
1506 *PORTER, RYAN S 2,041.56 339 STEVENS, ROBERT N JR 610.56
1850 *POTTER, EVERETT 4,066.16 524 *STEVENS, ROBERT N JR 1,776.56
1476 PROVOST, STEPHEN P 2,435.88 2392 *STOCKLEY, KEITH I 608.44
2055 *PUGH, JESSE 200.43 578 *STOCKLEY, KIRT E 322.24
2428 RAND-HANSON, NICHOLAS 583.00 1898 *Sullivan, Edward 459.40
190 *Red Stick Enterprise Inc 349.80 1343 THIBODEAU, FRANCIS D 1,878.32
872 *REIER PROPERTIES LLC 909.48 2576 *Thomas, John H 1,980.00
2076 RICKY A MOORE, RICKY MOORE 36.04 3112 *THOMAS, KATHY 1,034.64
3044 RICKY A MOORE, RICKY MOORE 1,002.76 22 THREE MOONS FARM LLC 799.24
177 *RIDEOUT, DEAN A 2,923.48 96 THREE MOONS FARM LLC 1,310.16
2183 *ROANE, CASANDRA 924.32 1717 THREE MOONS FARM LLC 536.36
341 ROGERS, JEANNE L 1,980.08 2997 THREE MOONS FARM LLC 1,977.96
988 *ROSE, CAROL 1,228.01 2835 TREFETHEN, MAUREEN J] 1,663.00
1425 *ROSOLOWSKI, THOMAS 2,175.02 2284 *VARNUM, ROBERT 148.40
1592 *RUSSELL, JAMES R 995.34 277 *WATERMAN, GENE A 566.16
1570 RUSSELL, JOHN K 1,036.68 566 WEINSCHENK, KARL 2,204.80
3007 *SAGE, SHARI 866.91 2255 WEST, CRISTALINE 1,098.16
124 SANDAGON, MERLIE-JO 290.44 2192 *WEST, PATRICIA 798.58
243 SANTIFORT, WILLIAM W 1,132.08 521 WHITTAKER, FRANCIS 4,231.52
1585 SANTIFORT, WILLIAM W 254.40 2909 WHITTIER, ROBERT J 652.96
1849 *SEBEC ENTERPRISES INC 3,150.32 363 *WIEDEN, PRISCILLA 1,232.26
2242 *SEBEC ENTERPRISES INC 638.12 3352 *WOODWARD, STEPHEN 68.57

1286 SEGERSON, JOHN D 398.56
*Paid after June 30, 2019 and prior to printing Town Report IReal Estate FY 2018-19 I 227,985.27
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PERSONAL PROPERTY 2018-2019 - JUNE 30, 2019

308 *ADE, ROBERT 636.00 26 HURD DANIEL O 127.20
325 *ATHENS PIZZERIA 296.80 296 *MAILLOUX, SHANE & DANELLE 29.68
364 BUTTERSTICK BAKERY 63.60 40 MOON HING 233.51
366 *CAPE DIEM 1.46 43 *MOORE, DAN 574.52
136 *DGB JR INC 1,512.63 36 *NUTTER MARK 174.41
74 *FOXCROFT PRINTING & SIGN 343.44 341 *PURITAN MEDICAL PRODUCTS 1,073.78
152 *FRASZ DAVID DR 971.58 47 WEBBER ACE HARDWARE 1,208.40
Personal Property FY 2018-19 7,247.01

Total Real Estate and Pers. Prop. 235,232.28

payment balance adjustments 116.94

*Paid after June 30, 2019 and prior to printing Town Report

Total Taxes Rec. FY 2018-19

[ 235,349.22

PERSONAL PROPERTY FY2015-16, FY2016-17, FY2017-18 - JUNE 30, 2019

ACCT NAME AMOUNT ACCT NAME AMOUNT

47 ACE HARDWARE INC 2365.80 60 SPACK, JOHN A. 543.90
195 SHIRETOWN PIZZA 288.05
*Paid after June 30, 2018 and prior to printing Town Report [Total Pers. Prop. FY15-16, 16-17, 17-18 | 3,197.75
ABATEMENTS 2018-2019

ACCT NAME AMOUNT IACCT | NAME AMOUNT
PP335 CSI Leasing 7.95 190 GMAT Legal Title Trust 2014-1 349.80
PP352 State Farm Auto Insurance 161.12 1704 Barn Recreation Club 330.72
2793 Bickmore, Raymond 120.84 67 Boone, Timothy 780.16
2183 Roane, Casandra 148.40 PP368 Seavey, Jonathan 42.40
446 Prince, Joanna 481.24 2236 Hesketh, William Sr. 78.44
2086 Rines, Melissa & Wes 14.84 240 Prestridge, Jefferson & Lori 110.24
3066 Dyer, Richard 165.36 2344 Schaaf, Rob & Sheila 402.80
1700 Pellerin, Richard Il 708.08 1673 Riverview Apartments 9241.08
1665 Town of Dover-Foxcroft 987.92 1777 Riverview Apartments 5895.72
1403 Town of Dover-Foxcroft 540.60 20567.71

SUPPLEMENTS 2018-2019

ACCT NAME AMOUNT ACCT NAME AMOUNT
446 Cookson-Fogg, Peggy 481.24 810 Nee, Jennifer (Sinclair) 1724.50
190 Red Stick Enterprises Inc. 349.80 184 Bernier, Robert 1411.40
2284 Varnum, Robert 148.40 2576 Thomas, John H & Barrett, Constan 1980.00
779 Leighton, Jennifer & Ryan 500.00 6595.34
TAX LIENS RECEIVABLE 2016-2017 - ACCT 2011 - SNAPP, ALICIA 1,844.78
TAX LIENS RECEIVABLE 2015-2016 - ACCT 2011 - SNAPP, ALICIA 554.51




TAX LIENS RECEIVABLE 2017-2018

ACCT NAME AMOUNT  ACCT NAME AMOUNT
564 *ASHFORD, VIOLET 652.08 3261 *MALOON JR, ARCHIE W 1,841.64
2672 *BELL, JOHN & DEBORA 1,078.44 342 *MALOON JR, ARCHIE W & 1,663.32
911 *BISHOP, DANIEL J 1,272.80 2101 *MANN, KEITH & JESSE 942.59
1480 *BISHOP, DANIEL J 196.46 1218 *MAZEROLLE, HEIRS OF DAVID 453.53
20 *BLOCKLER, LORRIE ANN 829.73 2233 *MERCHANT, CLARENCE J II 1,098.63
1556 *BLOCKLER, LORRIE ANN 135.85 2006 *MERRILL, MARK & JOAN 720.00
3133 *BLOCKLER, NATHAN R HEIRS OF 79.42 2487 MILLETTE, JOSEPH G 2,071.19
3355 *BLOCKLER, NATHAN R HEIRS OF 66.88 8 *MOORE, ALAN 2,246.75
3360 *BLOCKLER, NATHAN R HEIRS OF 94.05 2073 *MOORE, RICKY A 1,717.98
3018 *BOELENS, CYNTHIA 1,015.63 2076 *MOORE, RICKY A 35.53
3311 *BONSEY, GAYLE E 838.09 3044 *MOORE, RICKY A 988.57
1653 *BRAWN, FREDERICK D & NINA 886.16 2489 *MORSE, SUZANNE E 1,793.22
2791 *BURNES, ALAN J JR 1,162.04 1022 *O'BRIEN, DOLORES A 317.68
3396 *CASWELL, BRYAN K & DEBRA J 458.17 1604 *O'BRIEN, DOLORES A 50.16
2407 *CHADBOURNE, ERIK A 2,386.78 1850 *POTTER, EVERETT & DOREENE 4,008.62
3170 *COWING, EARL T 1,270.72 1476 *PROVOST, STEPHEN P 2,401.41
1695 *DOORE, ELAINE HEIRS OF 739.86 2183 *ROANE, CASANDRA & SANDRA 1,057.54
2834 *DOORE, ELAINE HEIRS OF 105.00 341 *ROGERS, JEANNE L 1,952.06
306 *DORNAN, SHAWN V 975.43 243 *SANTIFORT, WILLIAM W & 1,116.06
51 *EDGERLY, HERBERT E JR & 765.00 1585 *SANTIFORT, WILLIAM W & 250.80
1822 *EDGERLY, JASON 1,394.03 1286 *SEGERSON, JOHN D 392.92
1414 *EWER, MICHAEL J & BILLIE-JO 1,354.32 895 *SKOMARS, JEFF 629.09
2901 *EWER, MICHAEL J & BILLIE-JO 1,241.46 981 *SKOMARS, JEFF 284.24
963 *FAIRBROTHER, JAMES ALLEN 736.84 1086 *SKOMARS, JEFF 135.85
986 *GLADSTONE, PHILIP A & 2,092.09 1090 *SKOMARS, JEFF 361.57
1404 *HARRINGTON, JESSICA ] 938.41 787 *SMALL, JEFFERY W & LISA M 871.53
671 *HARVILLE, THOMAS W 783.75 2222 *SMALL, JEFFERY W & LISA M 282.15
2198 *HAYES, MARTIN D 1,985.50 1156 SMITH, DEAN J & LAURIE L 264.38
2959 *HENDERSON, RAYMOND D 2,261.38 2011 SNAPP, ALICIA 1,903.99
1394 *HENDERSON, RAYMOND D & 1,667.82 1979 *SPACK, JOHN A 5,080.79
726 *HENSLER, DEBORAH J 558.91 2182 *SPACK, JOHN A 509.96
502 *HICKS, CHARLES & JANICE 729.41 471 *SPAULDING, FREDERICK & 197.63
3081 *HOBBS, ARTHUR A 378.63 1074 *STEPHEN, RONALD 852.72
104 *HURD, DANIEL O 978.12 3076 *STEVENS SR, GARY L & 531.92
141 *HURD, DANIEL O 378.29 1343 *THIBODEAU, FRANCIS D & 1,851.74
304 *HURD, DANIEL O 4,692.05 22 *THREE MOONS FARM LLC 787.93
2388 *HURD, DANIEL O 418.00 96 *THREE MOONS FARM LLC 1,291.62
2292 *HURD, DANIEL O JR 2,434.85 1717 *THREE MOONS FARM LLC 528.77
1446 *JACKSON, KATHRYN L 2,031.48 2997 *THREE MOONS FARM LLC 1,949.97
1982 *JACKSON, PHOEBE 359.48 566 *WEINSCHENK, KARL 2,173.60
1962 *JAWPLN, INC 900.79 2255 *WEST, CRISTALINE & 1,082.62
1215 *KAJA HOLDINGS 2 LLC 1,690.33 521 *WHITTAKER, FRANCIS & ANN 4,171.64
*Paid after June 30, 2019 and prior to printing Town Report | 97I878'44

TAX ACQUIRED PROPERTY

ACCT NAME AMOUNT |ACCT NAME AMOUNT
110 BRAMMER, JACQUELINE L 2090.22 1403 *RAYMOND, CATHY 1810.88
3278 BRYANT, MARK 701.10 1673 RIVERVIEW APTS 54262.86
742 HALL, DANIEL R SR 2586.12 1777 RIVERVIEW APTS 36463.40
3404 LYFORD, ZACHARY 184.28 1800 *SEAVEY, JONATHAN M 5337.39
508 MILLETTE, JOSEPH G 798.08 2709 SHANNON, NOLA LIFE ESTATE 311.75
420 *O'BRIEN, DOLORES A 5641.09 3119 TATRO, ROGER L 226.66
3187 O'BRIEN, EDWARD P & MARY C 1071.36 2224 WAKEFIELD, ROBERT 6666.50
1839 PATTERSON, DWIGHT E 4044.58 1536 WORCESTER, SCOTT C 5249.02
1978 PULLYARD, THOMAS & HUDA 136135 *Paid after June 30,2019 and prior to printing Town Report | 128806.64
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Wastewater Receivables - June 30, 2019

ACCT NAME
9 *Allen, Gregory & Susan

24 *Arno, Gerald

26 *Brown, Michael L

28 *Assembly of God Church

30 *Warner, Daniel T

38 *Merchant, Mary A

41 Holmes, Matthew & Tabitha L
43 *Becraft, William J Sr

47 *Cerick, Kathryn

51 *Judith R Ellery Revocable Living Ti
54 Fortier, Timothy

58 *Bigelow Travel

60 *Billington, Lillian

62 *Richardson, Ryan S

65 *Rosolowski, Thomas

66 *Atkinson, Barbara

71 Blockler, Lorrie Ann

72 Blockler, Lorrie Ann

73 *Patricia King, Lorrie, Daniel B, Rict
85 *Armstrong, Donald D & Courtni
92 Provost, Stephen P

94 *Clukey, Christopher R

95 *Clukey, Christopher R

96 *Henderson, Raymond D & Mary Lc
98 *Brawn, Frederick D & Nina G
99 Brayson, Michael A
101 *Breton, David M & Cheryl
107 *Campbell, Molly
108 Lewis, David A
111 *Brown, Philip J & Brenda M
112 *Stefanides, Stephanie & Elissa
114 *Simpson, Katie M
115 *Leveille, Richard F Jr
116 Drinkwater, Lucas B & Davis, Rebec
123 *Butler, Allen & Sheila Clark
126 *Taylor, Jennifer M & Frankie Jr
129 *Fillmore, Rachel L
130 *Meader, George & Kathleen L
131 *Markaki, Eleni
132 *Cabral, Steven M
136 Makowski, Joel B & Theresa A
137 *Caruso, Peter & Donna
143 *Dean, Jason & Erika
144 *)ohnson, Nicole M
146 *Lovejoy, Stephen D & Jamie L
160 *Chase, Jennifer
162 *Church, Kevin D & Michelle M

AMOUNT

133.31
236.57
254.34
89.65
358.60
109.05
358.60
89.53
185.20
712.69
257.47
358.60
243.99
269.32
89.65
519.48
358.60
420.72
358.60
222.25
506.55
80.52
129.15
167.70
1,188.78
545.83
89.65
241.54
215.84
269.72
171.54
212.85
58.29
180.52
89.65
825.34
319.73
179.30
99.89
89.98
583.76
89.65
141.28
358.60
540.49
252.78
470.68

ACCT NAME
166 *Blay, Jane S
167 *Rogers, Michael L
170 Cotta, Chad
171 *Heirs of Majorie A Morris
175 *Calgram LLC
178 *McChesney, Gordon
188 *McLeish, Et Als Andrew H
189 *Maine General Investments, LLC
192 *Westman, Brian Nye
194 DSV SPV3 LLC

195 *LaRouche, Angela & Lewis, Clark |

212 *Cross, Jeffrey P

213 *Bragan, Christopher ) & Angel M
214 *Currier, Carol A

215 *Smith, Laurie A & Brian A

238 *Moulton, Kelly A & Ronald S
240 *Markaki, Eleni

241 *Morell, Sarah

246 *Detremont, Carl E

247 Heirs of Elaine Doore

249 *Royal, Christopher

252 *Doore, KeithJ

254 Laythe-Ritter, Theresa

257 Dornan, Shawn V

259 Heretakis Enterprises

271 *Dyer, Dennis & Deborah

275 *Earley, Connie D Et Als

276 *Earley, Robert E & Connie D
285 *Engstrom, Martha A

290 *Andrade, Mark A

291 Fairbrother, James Allen

294 *Perry, Gloria R

295 *Cranmer, Tracy

303 *Flanders, Paul & Tami

305 *Gilbert, Richard J & Judith A
306 Heirs of Elaine Doore

307 *Rayfield, William T & Audra M
308 *Taylor, Ryan )

310 *Kerr, Jessica L

316 *Foxcroft Printing and Signs, LLC
318 *Dankert, Ryan M & Stephanie L
321 *Frye, Alice

331 *lannetta, James

332 *Gilbert, Richard J & Judith A
353 *Grant, Burgess & Kathryn

354 *Grant, Terry LJr & Brenda K
355 *Caswell, Bryan K & Debra S

AMOUNT
432.16
179.30
587.51
89.65
179.30
358.60
158.43
417.11
3,360.47
676.90
179.30
89.65
99.39
358.60
89.65
136.03
371.62
391.58
89.67
356.29
101.90
103.42
225.40
358.60
89.65
259.70
495.40
358.60
222.50
358.39
418.47
182.86
89.30
190.26
316.00
358.60
176.30
169.20

89.65

2,582.53

210.15

89.65
179.30
183.61
540.00
300.37
358.60
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Wastewater Receivables - June 30, 2019

ACCT NAME AMOUNT
356 *Miller, Leslie A 89.65
360 *Martin, Scott A & Elizabeth R 351.77
362 *Butterfield Farms Inc 452.53
368 *Pforte, Kimberly 19.65
370 *Henderson, Michael ] & Alyssa 561.75
371 *Strout, Talon R, Kevin L & Vikki 358.60
373 Harrington, Jessica 358.60
375 *Osgood, Suzanne 89.65
376 *Nicholas, Regina L 89.65
377 *Martin, Ronald F & Daryl J 90.21
388 *Durgin, Jason D & Kristen E 324.03
396 *McKusick, Scott N 90.08
402 *Prestridge, Jefferson L & Lori 179.30
408 *Booth, Joseph M & Christa 89.65
409 *Wellington, Thomas D & Ami 298.03
412 *lannetta Medical Services 395.84
413 *Hanson, Brian M & Jasmane A 465.52
417 Jackson, Phoebe 397.20
424 *)ohnson, Randall 89.65
427 *Dever, Merlin G & Marjorie D 264.49
432 Bishop, Daniel J 358.60
438 *Keniston, Robert & Raelene 185.78
445 *Batchelder, Jennifer L 107.97
450 *Cookson, Melissa A 161.39
453 *Kirkpatrick, Rhonda L 198.75
457 *Laffin, Blaise & Jacqulyn L 222.30
458 *Lamson Knight, Marnie M 271.29
472 *Tyler, Rhonda L 179.87
473 *Leighton, David & Diane 224.00
481 *Levensalor, James & Donna 89.65
482 *Warstler, Brandon J 427.59
483 *Marshall, Mark & Lucielie 446.24
485 *Bisson, Elizabeth 107.45
487 *Randall, Dana C 225.37
488 *JAWPLN, INC 358.60
504 *London, Jennifer D & Ryan A 179.30
512 *Gallagher, Timothy B & Britney F 213.15
524 *Marden, Craig 279.05
527 *Anthony, Mark 1,134.91
528 *Marshall, Andrew E Ill & Brenda L 268.95
531 *Heirs of Khem Caigan 89.65
538 *Oakes, Chelsea R & Nicholas CG 89.19
542 *McDonald's Corporation 1,127.85
551 *Currie, Bart 334.44
554 *McKusick, Paul L Et Al 90.13
556 *Mooers, Billie-Jo 278.40
557 *West, Cristaline & Dunbar, Josept 358.60

ACCT NAME
567 *Arno, Jody Lynn
573 *Heirs of Francis J Michaud
574 *Michaud, Joseph & Carol
576 *Estes, Anthony B & Bracy, Kara J
578 *Heirs of Yolanda A Milton
587 Grant, Matthew Ryan & Chelsey E
591 *DSV SPV1 LLC
593 *Mayo Mill Holdings LLC
594 *Morgan, Daniel D & Karon
595 *Desmarais, Scott P & Nicole
599 *Cogar, Christopher A
601 *Mountain, Julie & Colbry, Janet
603 Kimball, Chad A
609 *Oakes, NancyJ
610 *Richardson, Betty
613 *Sage, Shari
614 *Ng, Peter G & Jie Yi
616 *Hosley, Robert G & Rebecca A
623 *Northern Waste Management LL(
626 *Nutter, Mark & Denise
634 *Oakes, NancyJ
645 *Pare, Ethel |
646 Harville, Thomas
648 *Chase, Henry F IV & Jayme M
649 *Fagan-Cannon, Amy & Cannon, N
650 *Bacon, John D Jr & St. John, Rhon
651 *McCue, Karen F
655 *Grant, Burgess & Kathryn
660 *Nelson, David P
663 *Perry, Gloria
665 *VRRIC Investmants LLC
671 *Stevens Jr, Robert N
672 *Letteney, Justin & Wagner, Kriste
673 *Ruksznis, Sheila
674 *Araujo, Hannah & Susan R
687 *Priest, Jacqueline & Barry
689 *Prouty Ford Sales Inc
691 *Prouty Family Trust
692 *Grass, Shawn & Kristi M
694 *Prouty, Edgar Cr
695 Provo, Roy & Karen
696 *Seiders, Floyd A & Linda E
697 *Qiu, Miichael & Yue Lan
700 *Bragan, Angel M & ChristopherJ
701 *Fisher-Amelotte, Patricia A & Am
706 *Hicks, Harold N & Tammie L
708 *Mulherin, Alvin D & Hilda A

AMOUNT
378.18
179.30
318.60
405.73
179.30
268.95
475.24

1,010.91
387.98
170.42
421.85

93.40
238.91
134.72

1,253.80
209.91
274.15
509.29

89.65
335.95
89.65
286.48
417.63

1,082.26
156.93
106.05

89.65
475.35
424.23
179.30

3,141.21
380.34
179.30
268.95
717.56
179.30

89.65
146.06
179.96
581.51
554.43
281.70
179.30
366.44

89.65
112.14
179.30
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Wastewater Receivables - June 30, 2019

ACCT NAME

710 *Weidner, William T & Leslie J
720 *Bozzelli, Danelle

723 *11 Grange Street Realty Trust
741 *Runnels, Charles A

749 *Lewis, Linus & Karrie

750 *Spear, Sandra J

751 Rogers, Jeanne L

753 *Brackett, Christopher)

760 Moore, Laurie A

764 *Russel, Daniel Alan

765 *Norsworthy, Loretta R

781 *MacDonald, Lori A & Nathan P
782 *Philbrick, Daniel S & Barranco, Ma
783 Maloon, Archie W Jr & Melanie )
786 *Living Word Assembly of God, Par
790 *Shapleigh, Steven M

791 *Vyrhof, Alan

792 *Schmidt, James A & Kathy A
799 Marshall, Ronald L & Lisa |

810 Snide, Jennette M

816 Spack, John A

817 *Pulkkinen, Kerri J

824 *Porter, Ryan S & Birmingham, Anc
826 *Stevens, Jeffrey

827 *Stiffler, Annemarie

829 *Gidman, Daniel R & Brigette G
834 *Howell, Alyssa

835 Weinschenk, Karl

836 *Tash, Richard A & Elaine J

839 *Bragan, Christopher & Angel
840 *Raynes, Matthew & Mallett, Julie
841 Tenan, Larry W & Lisa A

844 *Brayall, Jacqueline

848 *Edgerly, Ryan R

850 *Kliesch, James Ronald

857 Gladstone, Philip A & Lauren E
859 Spack, John A

865 *Hanna, Brian R/Ellis Jessica
869 *Cookson, Debra L

874 *Levensalor, Jessica A

876 *Urquhart, Lynette M

882 *Webber, Jonathan Lee

883 *Sherman, Shane E & Barbara E
890 *Thurlow, Melzer F

896 *Robinson Enterprises LLC

897 *Webber, Janet E

AMOUNT

112.31
166.04
908.10
361.13
179.30
89.65
338.16
179.30
492.92
89.65
89.65
89.65
89.65
805.92
230.01
268.95
107.08
90.34
445.50
358.60
735.09
385.23
359.00
508.44
296.03
204.98
179.30
746.81
216.05
104.27
462.06
1,116.43
179.30
117.67
185.67
877.23
358.60
179.30
273.31
416.51
306.83
286.58
81.29
439.38
358.60
236.38

ACCT NAME AMOUNT
902 *Eddy, Charles & Harding, Mindy 105.97
909 *Sands, Seth T & Darcie W 268.95
910 *Sands, Seth T & Darcy D 683.55
913 *Goodine, Todd P & Christine J 446.86
918 Cameron, Alan L 356.08
922 *Belote, Travis L & Kristen L 274.41
924 *McKusick, Paul L & Jody K 176.43
925 Leveille, Richard F 358.60
926 *YMCA 5,283.76
928 *Jameson, Lauralyn Buie 89.65
931 *Morse, Judith Ann 231.08
934 *StevensJr, Robert N & Paula A 429.35
946 Merchant, Clarence J Il 358.60
952 *Getchell, Judith S 358.60
957 *Vincent, Matthew & Ashley 179.30
966 *Webber, Jonathan L 213.50
968 *Thorpe, Edward J 179.30
979 Nadeau, Steven A & Angel A 358.60
989 *Mallett, Melissa M & Duane R 149.24

1000 *Patricia King, Lorrie, Daniel B, Ric 363.75
1025 *Reier Properties LLC 358.60
1033 *Porter, Judith A 89.65
1034 *Conner, ChristopherJon & Sonya 89.65
1052 *VVRIC Investmants LLC 1,312.94
1053 Blockler, Lorrie Ann 358.60
1054 *Tash, Richard A & Elaine J 89.65
1060 *Mayo Mill Holdings LLC 116.73
1070 *Cochran, Stephen P & Cheryl L 179.30
9001 *Young, Robert & Emma 179.30
9006 *Cochran, Stephen P & Cheryl L 179.30
9007 Spencer, Michael W & Christina F 358.60
9008 *Darrah, Shawn D & Rachel 89.65
9009 *Davis, Robert A 89.65
9010 *Davis, Robert A & Heirs of Delore 89.65
9015 *Jones, Kenneth 179.30
9016 *Security Enterprises Inc c/o Kenn 89.65
9017 *Mooers, Michelle 89.65
9019 *Nelson, Scott & Colleen 179.30
9021 *Powell, Alexander ClJr 268.95
9033 *Jones, Kenneth 179.30
9021 *Powell, Alexander ClJr 268.95
9033 *Jones, Kenneth 179.30

Payment Balance Adjustments 476.27

Total Receivables June 30, 2019| 92,818.97

*Paid after June 30, 2019 and prior to printing of Town Report
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Wastewater Liens - June 30, 2019

ACCT NAME AMOUNT ACCT NAME AMOUNT
30 *Warner, Daniel T 358.15 1591 *Kaja Holdongs 2, LLC 1,602.09
71 Blockler, Lorrie Ann 361.04 L599 *Cogar, Christopher A 308.86
72 Blockler, Lorrie Ann 512.64 L646 Harville, Thomas 486.88
92 Provost, Stephen P 468.88 L695 *Provo, Roy & Karen 352.53
98 *Brawn, Frederick D & Nina G 1,335.53 L783 Maloon, Archie W Jr & Melanie ) 559.12

136 Makowski, Joel B & Theresa A 546.85 L810 Snide, Jennette M 358.60
170 Cotta, Chad 581.24 1816 Spack, John A 984.05
194 DSV SPV3 LLC 854.84 1835 Weinschenk, Karl 824.48
240 *Markaki, Eleni 89.65 L857 Gladstone, Philip A & Lauren E 852.12
257 Dornan, Shawn V 394.74 L1859 Spack, John A 358.60
291 Fairbrother, James Allen 549.01 L1896 *Robinson Enterprises LLC 179.40
306 Heirs of Elaine Doore 358.60 L1925 *Leveille, Richard F 268.70
355 *Caswell, Bryan K & Debra S 107.43 1979 *Nadeau, Steven A & Angel A 188.86
373 Harrington, Jessica 358.60 L1053 Blockler, Lorrie Ann 361.60
417 Jackson, Phoebe 179.30 L9007 Spencer, Michael W & Christina F 2.98
432 *Bishop, Daniel J 358.60

527 *Anthony, Mark 886.89

557 *West, Cristaline & Dunbar, Josept 358.60 Total Liens June 30, 2019 16,349.46

*Paid after June 30, 2019 and prior to printing of Town Report
Wastewater Tax Acquired Property - June 30, 2019

ACCT NAME AMOUNT ACCT NAME AMOUNT

56 *Raymond, Cathy 4,274.90 729 Riverview Apartments 4,412.36
319 *O'Brien, Dolores A 2,040.72 730 Riverview Apartments 1,407.77
589 *Seavey, Jonathan M & Tardy, Josh  1,430.25 731 Riverview Apartments 2,794.16
590 *Seavey, Jonathan M & Tardy, Josh  1,499.96 732 Riverview Apartments 2,214.15
725 Riverview Apartments 3,393.16 1043 Riverview Apartments 4,875.63
726 Riverview Apartments 5,480.12
727 Riverview Apartments 2,777.30
728 Riverview Apartments 2,281.33 Total Tax Acquired June 30,2019 38,881.81

*Paid after June 30, 2019 and prior to printing of Town Report
Wastewater Abatements 2018-2019
ACCT NAME AMOUNT ACCT NAME AMOUNT

629 Nutting, Richard & Mary 61.37 840 Raynes, Matthew & Mallett, Julie 299.56
777 Wesley, Christopher & Cortney 13.67 604 Champeon, Joseph E 719.80
168 Soileau, Randall 40.85 133 Blethen, Carol 416.96
315 Trustees of Foxcroft Academy 174.28

205 Gaudet, Brian & Lauren 74.96 Total Abatements

683 Preble, Steve 16.87 July 1, 2018-June 30, 2019 1818.32

110




l \\.l_—/ Dover
)L goxcr'o/t

PAY YOUR BILL ONLINE
REAL ESTATE TAX, PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX AND SEWER

You will be able to access the AndroGov online payment screen at https://dover-foxcroft.androgov.com
or visit our website at www.dover-foxcroft.org and click on the Online Services tab.

Available online payment methods:

1) ACH/Checking Account - $1.00 processing fee

2) Credit/Debit Cards:
a) Credit Cards — VISA, MasterCard, American Express, Discover
2.75% processing fee, minimum charge $1.95
b) VISA consumer Debit Card — discounted flat rate of $3.95 for tax payments

c) All other Debit Cards — processed same as Credit Cards

YOU MAY NOW ACCESS YOUR CURRENT REAL ESTATE ACCOUNT BALANCE ONLINE

Please feel free to call our office for further information — (207)564-3318

Credit/Debit card payments are accepted in the town office or by phone
2.5% third party processing fee applies for charges over $40.00
$1.00 for charges $40.00 and under
**To avoid charges you may pay by cash or check**
$35.00 FEE FOR ALL RETURNED CHECKS

MUNICIPAL OFFICE SCHEDULE
Current Daily Hours:

Monday, Thursday, Friday — 7:30 — 4:30
Wednesday — 8:30 - 5:30
Tuesday - Closed

Due to the complexity of VITAL RECORDS and NEW MOTOR VEHICLE REGISTRATIONS
WE MAY NOT PROCESS THEM AFTER 3:30 PM (4:30 PM on WEDNESDAY)

VISIT OUR WEBSITE www.dover-foxcroft.org
Town Departments, Property Cards, Tax Mapping, Meetings, Minutes, News, Public Notices, Town Report,
Economic Development, Community Profile, Contact information and much more.
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Dover-Foxcroft, Maine

Search Q

Town Departments
_ Welcome to Dover-Foxcroft!

Municipal Government

Property Cards and Tax
Mapping

Elections & Voting

Upcoming Meetings and
Minutes

Information on Upcoming Election

Public Notices

You can request an absentee ballot by
electronic request, telephone, or in writing.
We cannot accept an email request for an
absentee ballot. Click here to find out how to
receive an absentee ballot:

Town Report
Employment and
Volunteer Opportunities

Contact Us

ABSENTEE BALLOT REQUEST

SOS Video Message

ntact Your Legislators

OVID 19 Special Notices
]

Events

31 1 2 3 4 5 6
Special Board Public
of Selectmen Hearing -
Meeting Budget
7 8 9 10 11 12 13
Board of Transportation
Selectmen Study Public
Meeting Hearing
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
Board of
Selectmen
Meeting/Public
Hearing on
Ballot
28 29 30 1 2 3 4
= May Jul >
Read more...

48 Morton Avenue Suite A Telephone : Fax : (207) 564-3621

Home | Visit Dover-Foxcroft | News = [Economic and Community Development | Local Health Initiatives | Helpful Links | Town Departments | Municipal Government

Online Services | Property Cards and Tax Mapping | Upcoming Meetings and Minutes | Public Notices | Town Report | Employment and Volunteer Opportunities
Contact Us | Contact Your Legislators | COVID 19 Spedal Notices | COVID 19 Emergency Relief Loans & Programs (Piscataguis Chamber of Commerce
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Albee, Pauline T.
Arsenault, Carol Ann
Becraft, William J. Sr.
Bennett, Opal J.
Bickford, Robert E.

Borden, Thomas T.

Brammer, Jacqueline L.

Brasier, Velma P.
Bridge, Omar N.
Brooks, Mildred F.
Brown, Clifford J.
Butler, Charles R.
Carver, Corey A.
Chadbourne, Archie G.
Clark, Frank E.
Clark, Herman N. Jr.
Clarke, Roy

Clukey, Rosalie A.
Coates, Harold A.
Cole, Barbara E.
Corson, Kenneth A. Sr.
Dershem, Trisha F.
Doore, Paul H.
Dow, Ruth A.
Downs, Karine E.
Downs, Pauline A.
Dyer, Shawn G.
Eddy, Lois E.

Edgerly, Helen E.

In Remembrance - July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019

Eldridge, Norman Q.
Emmons, Miriam M.
Engstrom, Clayton D.
Estes, Ilvan D.
Flanders, Thomas W.
Forrest, George E.
Gerry, Priscilla R.
Grant, Donald R.
Grant, Gloria M.
Grant, Myra C.

Gray, Maryanne L.
Harrison, Jeffery A.
Harrison, Paul A.
Herrick, Gerald L. Sr.
Herring, Edwin B.
Hobbs, Edward F.
Hubbell, Carol F.
Hussey, Edith L.
Ireland, Eric R.
Johnson, Richard A.
Kain, Frances A.
Kruzewski, Chester J. Jr.
LaCasce, James R.
Laferriere, Barbara A.
Langley, Scott D.
Larrabee, Carol L.
Leighton, Rosalie N.
Leo, Robert E.

Lightbody, Margaret H.
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Maloon, Shawn O.
Manchester, Carla F.
Mayhew, John R.
McAfee, Matthew A.
McDonald, Cecilia T.
McDonald, Christine M.
McLellan, Edythe M.
McSorley, Leroy A.
Merrill, Andrew S.
Merrill, Charles L.
Merrill, Merle A.
Millette, Joseph G. Jr.
Morris, Marjorie A.
Murchison, Harriet K.
Newell, Michael L.
Norsworthy, Richard J.
Nutter, Samuel F.
Otto, Arthur G.
Packard, Frances M.
Pelotte, Gerald |I.
Perkins, Ralph R.
Perry, Judy L.
Pingree, Julie A.
Pratt, Stephen H.
Pratt, Thomas H.
Price, James H.
Prouix, Donald L.
Ramsden, Deborah D.

Redmond, Wayne W.

Richards, Hazel E.
Russell, Frances L.
Russell, John K.
Russell, Judith M.
Sawtelle, ElImer C.
Sawyer, Mary Kay
Sibert, Deborah M.
Skillings, Nancy L.
Smart, Eva R.
Snowdale, David A.
Stearns, Ruth G.
Stites, Barbara A.
Stone, Marjorie E.
Thomas, Hugh M. Jr.
Tillson, Robert M.
Warner, Suzanne
Wells, Kathy S.
Wessel, Joyce J.
Whittaker, Beverly A.
Williams, Verna R.
Wilson, Barbara P.
Witham, Lawrence E.
Woodruff, Anthony W.
Woodworth, Dwight Jr.
Wyman, Rachel M.
Young, Barbara E.

Young, Eva B.



FRIENDS OF CENTRAL HALL

The Friends of Central Hall have been pursuing the
dream of Central Hall Restoration since 2008 when a small
group of citizens highly devoted to preserving nearly our last
historic building met with this one goal in mind. We are all so
very excited to see this dream come to fulfillment and to see
our beautiful second floor restored to its late 1800’s beauty. It
has become a thriving and vibrant center for groups throughout
our area to use for hundreds of community events and
activities.

The landscaping is a “thing of beauty” and our thanks go
out to Karen Maas for her hundreds of hours devoted to
making us all catch our breath at the magnificence of it all. Entwined amidst this beauty are your bricks — “your”

engraved bricks dedicated to memories of beloved family

—__ members, individuals, former and current businesses and
organizations all making up the historical fabric of our
town. Over the past 11 years as we worked on this
m _1 ; project, we knew we would always get a bit emotional as
i . k- we finally got to see and walk amongst these memorial

L G & -3~ g 1 Dbricks and gardens. This part of the project has not failed
us. Itisso very rewarding to view this part of our history
and to watch visitors and community members walking
throughout pointing out bricks of those who will always
have a place in our memories and hearts.

R
U

‘

The best part of this project is that it is a FOREVER

project with no deadlines or time limits. We have over 200

bricks at this time and will be eternally grateful to each and

every one of you for your donations through this Memorial

Brick Program. There will always be room for more
engraved bricks of your loved ones — anyone or anything you cherish and would like to have become a part of our
historical map. Contact Barb Moore at 717-3338, Cindy Woodworth at 217-0963, or Mary Annis at 564-0820 for an
application or information.

FOCH or Friends of Central Hall was honored on November 15" at
the Valley Grange Hall in Guilford Center with a Spirit of America
Award for contributions made to our community through this restoration
program.

' I —
%;”r/i leate of R, ,,(,(7,,,7/(,,,

Awarded To

We extend a special thank you to Jack Clukey, Town Manager and

the Town of Dover-Foxcroft for their ongoing support in our mission. ERIENDS OF CENTRALHALE

ROFT

We feel this Award belongs to every one of you in our community for Foc
your continuous and heartfelt support. Thank you from the bottom of

our hearts for helping to save this building — for not letting it go the way
of so many other historical buildings in this town and area. You are the Homas 5. 20
Spirit of America —the Spirit of Dover-Foxcroft History!

Sincerely,
Barbara and Bob Moore, Cindy & Brian Woodworth, Dennis Lyford, Mary & Jim Annis, Sylvia Dean
and our leaders: Chris Maas and Elwood Edgerly

Original Mission Statement:

The mission of the Friends of Central Hall is to preserve, restore to its former glory, maintain, and operate Central Hall as an event center
that showcases small town America and promotes a vibrant Main Street by joining forces with those seeking to revitalize the community.
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Shiretown Homecoming Celebration 2020

ANNUAL MAPLE BREAKFAST, HOMECOMING PARADE, MUNICIPAL BEACH PARTY & FIREWORKS

The Dover-Foxcroft Shiretown Homecoming Committee has cancelled the 2020
celebration due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The health risk and uncertainty from the
pandemic has led the committee to cancel the annual maple breakfast and the
homecoming parade, beach party and fireworks scheduled for Saturday, August 1, 2020.

The committee will focus its efforts on planning a bigger and better 2021 celebration.

Our decision certainly was not an easy one but one that was necessary in light of the
present COVID-19 health risks. The committee would like to take this opportunity to
thank its numerous sponsors and volunteers who make this celebration possible and
support it throughout the year.

STAY SAFE!
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Herbert Bergquist

Michael & Carolyn Brennan
Helen & Chuck Cole

Derrill & MJ Cowing

Dover Redemption

Robert & Miriam Falkowski
Terry Finlay & Marlborough Packard
Gary & Jacqueline Grant

Hal Gary Family

Kenneth & Linda Hews

Kerry Israels

Jason’s Butcher Shop

Krause Family

Peter & Dina Lattanzi

Floyd & Nathalee Marsh

Lori & Jim Noble

Jerry Packard & Tish Dutson
Kathryn & John Pisano
Pride’s Point

Challa Reddy

Ben & Jody Richmond

Scott & Linda Searles

Nancy Soucy

Steinke & Caruso Dental Care
Brian Thibeau & Shannon Bonsey
Jan Vanderhoof

Pam Weatherbee

Vic & Marie Woodbrey

2019 Fireworks Sponsors

Dover-Foxcroft Homecoming Celebration

In Memory of:

Art & Jean Hanson
Joe Ingraham
Gordon Lyford

Bill & Betty Meucci

Paul Pray
John C. & Fred Weston

Bob White

Johnny & Linda Black
Chasse Chiropractic
Robert Conrad

Doug & Lori Cummings
Mike & Katherine Dow
Marilyn Febles

Mary & Thomas Frederick
Dot & Jim Gustafson

Bob & Janet Hall

Higgins Family

J. D. Raymond Transport Inc.
Jones Camp

David & Laurie Lachance
Andy & Melissa Leali
Judith Marshall

John Osgood

Jason Perrin & Erin Carroll
F. Karen Pomnitz

Doretta & Lyman Prior
Raymond & Patricia Reny
David Roberts

Sam & Diana Shepherd
Walter & Sylvia Soule
Susan & Sean Stitham
Gilbert & Tanya Thibeau & Family
Fred Wappler

Darrell & Edie Webb
Carole Young & Phil Hakala
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Kathyrn Bourgoin

Clark Family

Mike & Angela Cook
Doug & Gena Dever

Don & Leslie Dreves
Lesley Fernow & David Frasz
Goula Family

H.A. Higgins & Son Inc.
Hebert Family

Darlyn & Pete Hilmar
JAMB

Kleen Sky LLC

John & Christine Lattanzi
Robert & Karen Lewin
Lee & George Ann Millet
Sandy Otero

Alain Peteroy

Ellen Pride

Bud & Kathy Prouty
George Reynolds & Carol Leach
Steve & Vanee Robinson
Terry & Judy Snow
Suzanne Stacy

Stitt Family

Trundy Family

Jeff & Lilly Weatherbee
John & Pat Wiles

Tim Merrill & Company



TOWN OF DOVER-FOXCROFT
INCORPORATED 1922
MUNICIPAL ELECTION SCHEDULE

Tuesday, July 14, 2020
State of Maine Primary and Special Referendum Election
Municipal Candidate and Annual Town Meeting Referendum Election

Regional School Unit No. 68 Budget Validation Referendum

Election of Moderator - 7:45 AM, Polls are open from 8:00 AM - 8:00 PM

Special Town Meetings

Notices of Special Town Meetings are posted in advance at the following
locations: Municipal Building Lobby Bulletin Board, Mountains Market, United
States Post Office, and Webber Ace Hardware and on our website:
www.dover-foxcroft.org.

A Person may register to vote on or before Election Day.

Polls are located at the Municipal Building Gymnasium-

48 Morton Avenue, Dover-Foxcroft, Maine 04426.
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PROPOSED BUDGET AND HISTORY

Appropriations
Revenues

Property Tax

FY 14-15

$4,068,350.00
$1.814,052.08

FY 15-16

$4,238,880.00
$1.940.469.02

FY 16-17

$4,585,075.00
$1,948,420.61

June 2020

FY 17-18

$5,074,820.00
$2,372,463.57

FY 18-19

$5,019,355.00
$2,205,108.00

FY 19-20

$5,470,475.00
$2,604,523.00

FY 20-21

$5,329,635.00
$2.393.808.00

$2,254,297.92

TAX RATE COMPUTATION

TIF AMOUNT
Town

Schools
County
Overlay

Total Prop.Tax

Net to Raise
Town Valuation

Mil Rate$/1000

$94,301.36
$2,254,297.92
$2,508,595.05
$406,040.00
$201,632.57
$5,464,866.90

$5,464,866.90

0.01825
$18.25/$1.000

$2,298,410.98

$110,600.18
$2,298,410.98
$2,579,073.91
$424,114.00
$205,335.73
$5,617,534.80

$5,617,534.80

0.01860
$18.60/$1.000

$2,636,654.39

$145,050.20
$2,636,654.39
$2,720,387.05
$432,501.00
$202,744.96
$6,137,337.60

$6,137,337.60

0.02025
$20.25/$1,000

$2,702,356.43

$127,758.76
$2,702,356.43
$2,780,636.48
$428,079.00
$207,773.87
$6,246,604.54

$6,246,604.54

0.02090
$20.90/$1.000

$2,814,247.00

$122,013.00
$2,814,247.00
$2,785,394.99
$434,662.00
$200,161.00
$6,356,477.99

$6,356,477.99

0.02120

$21.20/$1.000

$2,865,952.00

$109,508.00
$2,865,952.00
$2,819,954.00
$466,544.00
$229,922.00
$6,491,880.00

$6,491,880.00

0.02150

$21.50/$1,000

$2,935,827.00

$109,508.00
$2,935,827.00
$2,812,070.00
$497,994.00
$222,000.00
$6,577,399.00

$6,577,399.00

$299,461,200.00 $302,018,000.00 $303,078,400.00 $298,880,600.00 $299,833,900.00 $301,948,400.00 $305,948,400.00

0.02150

$21.50/$1.000

$ difference
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BUDGET ADVISORY COMMITTEE
The Budget Review Committee Work on the FY 2020-2021 Town Budget

The Budget Committee met to review and comment on the town’s fiscal year 2020-21 budget. We met in person twice,
on March 4™ and March 11™. At those meetings, we discussed budget proposals for these departments: Protection,
Hydrants/Fire, General, Government, Contingency and Abatement, Debt Service, Welfare, Library, Solid Waste,
Recreation, Cemetery, Economic Development and the Airport.

Due to the COVID-19 shut downs, we did not meet again until a zoom meeting on May 13", At that time, we reviewed
changes to the budget in anticipation of the anticipated revenue shortfalls locally and from the state. We also covered
the budget for Public Works and Road Maintenance.

We estimate potential revenue losses due to the COVID-19 of approximately $210,000 (about $63,000 from Excise Tax
reductions and approximately $149,000 from State Revenue Sharing). These are only our best guesses as of May 13"

Given those anticipated revenue reductions and the uncertainties thereof, we recommended significant cuts to the
original budget proposal. These cuts included: a reduction of wage increases to 2% (cost of living only), cuts in fuel
costs, copier usage, consultant fees, library, other administration expenses and significant capital improvement deferrals
($150,000 for a replacement plow truck, and $150,000 for a bridge replacement). Both of the capital expenses were
proposed to be funded by the use of fund balance and these deferrals will need to be made good in subsequent
budgets. Total budget expense reductions from the original FY 2020/21 plan came to $481,705.

As a result, the budget expenses that were recommended by the Budget Advisory Committee totaled $5,329,635 (down
from the prior year’s expense budget of $5,470,475). Given that the town expects to have an increase of assessed value
of approximately $4,000,000 (due to new construction), and given that both the County and School budgets are
expected to be flat, we anticipate that, even with the COVID-19 cuts to revenue, the net tax rate will likely remain
unchanged from last year. Neither do we anticipate a change in Wastewater fees from this year.

We understand that there remains a great deal of uncertainty and risk in this budget. Not only are we uncertain as to
the amount of revenue reductions possibly beyond the $210,000 in our budget, but we have deferred $300,000 in
capital expenses (bridge and plow truck) that must be made good in the future. \We spent considerable time in the May
13" meeting discussing contingency plans to manage those risks. We are comfortable that the town administrators
have sufficient resources to manage those risks, including, as a last resort when more information on the State’s
finances is known, calling a special town meeting.

Altogether, we are comfortable that this budget maintains essential services while trimming expenses wherever possible
and yet, with the exception of the two above mentioned capital expenses, not exposing us to significant future liabilities.

The committee continues to recognize the excellent work that Jack Clukey, Lisa Ronco, David Johnson, and the town’s
department managers have done not only to prepare and revise the budget but to operate the town’s departments so
well on such modest funds. | would also like to express my appreciation for the work done by the review committee —
Jim Annis, Lucas Butler, Kim Cavanagh, Bill Clark, Jamie Gaudion, Sean Letarte, Kathleen Thibault and Marc Poulin. It was
truly an honor and a pleasure working with such a good group.

Respectfully Submitted,

Chris Maas
Chair
Budget Advisory Committee
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PROJECTED TAX COMMITMENT

Town of Dover-Foxcroft
ProjectedTax Commitment Breakdown
FY 2020-2021

Town 46.8%

County 8%

Schools 45.2%
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Town of Dover-Foxcroft
48 Morton Avenue Dover-Foxcroft Maine 04426
Fiscal Year 2020-2021
Annual Town Meeting Warrant
Tuesday, July 14, 2020

To Ryan Reardon, a Constable of the Town of Dover-Foxcroft in the County of Piscataquis and State of Maine, or any
other Constable of said Town:

GREETINGS:

In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn the inhabitants of said Town of Dover-
Foxcroft in said County and State qualified by law to vote in town affairs, to meet at the Dover-Foxcroft Municipal
Building Gymnasium in said Town on Tuesday, the 14th day of July, A.D., 2020 at Seven Forty Five O’clock in the
forenoon, then and there to act upon the following articles:

ARTICLE 1
To elect a Moderator to preside at said meeting and to vote by written ballot.

ARTICLE 2

Shall the Town appropriate revenues anticipated in the amount of $2,133,808 and appropriate additional funds including
funds from surplus in the amount of $260,000, for a total amount of $2,393,808 to be used to reduce amounts to be raised
from the property tax commitment to fund appropriations in subsequent articles, and; authorize the Board of Selectmen to
appropriate an additional amount from surplus to reduce the property tax commitment?

Board of Selectmen Recommends.
Budget Advisory Committee Recommends.

ARTICLE 3
Shall the Town raise and appropriate the sum of $4,651,635, for Town Operations? (Revenue and surplus to be used to
reduce the amount to be raised to fund this article is $2,279,508, net amount to be raised is $2,372,127.)

Previous Year

General Government $ 1,570,260 $ 1,546,525
Protection $ 547,900 $ 545,135
Fire Department $ 197,830 $ 187,215
Fire Hydrants $ 215,305 $ 215,305
Public Works $ 998,095 $ 992,380
Solid Waste $ 538,160 $ 536,980
Welfare $ 43,250 $ 41,420
Social Service $ 11,800 $ 11,600
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Previous Year

Recreation Facilities $ 33,225 $ 30,750
Recreation Programming $ 59,000 $ 56,000
Airport $ 2,370 $ 750
Cemetery $ 134,975 $ 133,750
Contingency/Abatement $ 50,000 $ 35,000
Promotion & Development $ 11,800 $ 11,500
Thompson Free Library $ 196,850 $ 197,275
Debt Service $ 40,815 $ 56,740
Lease Prepayment $ 0 $ 162,150
TOTAL $ 4,651,635 $ 4,760,475

Board of Selectmen Recommends.
Budget Advisory Committee Recommends.

ARTICLE 4

Shall the Town raise and appropriate the sum of $205,500 to capital reserve to fund capital equipment? (Revenue and
surplus to be used to reduce the amount to be raised to fund this article is $18,600, net amount to be raised is $186,900);
and authorize the Board of Selectmen to expend funds as follows:

Previous Year

Administration $ 0 $ 5,000
Assessing $ 3,000 $ 5,000
Police $ 25,000 $ 30,000
Public Works $ 90,000 $ 90,000
Solid Waste $ 12500 $ 12,500
Cemeteries $ 10,000 $ 15,000
Fire 3 65,000 $ 65,000
TOTAL $ 205,500 $ 222,500

Board of Selectmen Recommends.
Budget Advisory Committee Recommends.

ARTICLE 5

Shall the Town raise and appropriate the sum of $72,500 to capital reserve to fund capital improvements to Town
buildings and facilities? (Revenue to be used to reduce the amount to be raised to fund this article is $5,700,

net amount to be raised is $66,800); and authorize the Board of Selectmen to expend funds as follows:
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Previous Year

Police Station $ 5,700 $ 5,700
Fire Station $ 10,000 $ 10,000
Public Works $ 12,500 $ 12,500
Cemetery/Maintenance $ 3,000 $ 3,000
Solid Waste/Recycling $ 7,500 $ 7,500
Recreation $ 8,800 $ 8,800
Municipal Building $ 25,000 $ 40,000
TOTAL $ 72,500 $ 87,500

Board of Selectmen Recommends.
Budget Advisory Committee Recommends.

ARTICLE 6

Shall the Town appropriate all money received from the State of Maine (anticipated in the amount of $90,000) for capital
improvements and maintenance of Town roads and bridges per Urban-Rural Initiative Public Law Title 23 Chapter 19
Subsection 1803-B, and raise and appropriate $310,000 for capital improvements and maintenance for Town Roads?
Total expenditure = $400,000.

Previous Year

Local Road Improvements $400,000 $400,000

Board of Selectmen Recommends.
Budget Advisory Committee Recommends.

ARTICLE 7
Shall the Town of Dover-Foxcroft appropriate all sewer department revenue anticipated in the amount of $728,510 to
fund sewer operations, debt repayment and capital? Total expenditure = $728,510 .

(Sewer fees are projected to remain unchanged at a base rate of $89.65 for usage at 0-1,200 cubic feet and
$9.37 for usage in excess of 1,200 cubic feet.)

Sewer Department Operations, Debt Repayment and Capital

Previous Year

Operations $ 446,415 $ 440,835
Debt Repayment $ 218,695 $ 218,745
Capital Equipment $ 63,400 $ 89,850
Capital Improvement $ 0 $ 37,000
TOTAL $ 728,510 $ 786,430

Board of Selectmen Recommends.
Budget Advisory Committee Recommends.
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ARTICLE 8
Shall an ordinance entitled “Amendments to the Town of Dover-Foxcroft Land Use Ordinance” be enacted?

Note: An attested copy of the proposed Ordinance is available at the Office of the Town Clerk and will be available at
Town Meeting.

ARTICLE 9
Shall an ordinance entitled “Amendments to the Town of Dover-Foxcroft Land Use Ordinance pertaining to the regulation
of Solar Energy Systems” be enacted?

Note: An attested copy of the proposed Ordinance is available at the Office of the Town Clerk and will be available at
Town Meeting.

ARTICLE 10
Shall an ordinance entitled “Town of Dover-Foxcroft Vacant and Abandoned Building Ordinance” be enacted?

Note: An attested copy of the proposed Ordinance is available at the Office of the Town Clerk and will be available at
Town Meeting.

ARTICLE 11
Shall an ordinance entitled “Amendments to the Town of Dover-Foxcroft Land Use Ordinance pertaining to the regulation
of Mega Land Uses” be enacted?

Note: An attested copy of the proposed Ordinance is available at the Office of the Town Clerk and will be available at

Town Meeting.

The Selectmen hereby give notice that The Office of the Registrar of Voters in the Dover-Foxcroft Municipal Building will
be available from 7:30 o’clock in the forenoon until 4:30 o’clock in the afternoon on the 9™, 10" and 13" day of July AD,
2020 to receive applications of persons claiming a right to vote.

Given under our hands this 8 day of June, A.D., 2020

TOWN OF DOVER-FOXCROFT

BOARD OF SELECTMEN
Elwood E. Edgerly, Chairman Jane K. Conroy
Cynthia Freeman Cyr, Vice Chairman Gail D’ Agostino
Stephen G. Grammont Scott A. Taylor

W. Ernie Thomas
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MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIRECTORY

Town Office, Town Manager
Motor Vehicle Registrations
Assessor's Office

General Assistance

Code Enforcement Officer

Mon, Thurs, Fri...7:30am-4:30pm - Wed...8:30am-5:30pm
Mon, Thurs, Fri...7:30am-4:30pm - Wed...8:30am-5:30pm
Call for an appointment

Sept. 1 — April 30 - Mon & Thurs 8:00am-10:00am

May 1 — August 31 — Wed 8:30am-11:00am

Brian Gaudet - M, W, Th, F - 8:00am-4:00pm-cell-717-3186 or

564-3318
564-3318
564-3318
564-3318 x1019

564-3318 x1025

Town Office Closed To The Public on Tuesdays

Plumbing Inspector Bret Marshall 717-9595
Public Works Garage Mon-Fri - 7:00am-3:30pm 564-2841
Transfer Station Mon & Fri - 9am-5pm, Wed.10am-6pm, Sat. 8am-4pm 564-7613
Recycling Center Mon & Fri - 9am-5pm, Wed.10am-6pm, Sat. 8am-4pm 564-7940
Wastewater Treatment Plant Mon-Fri - 7:00am-3:30pm Emergency call 759-7132 564-3905
EMERGENCY/FIRE DEPT. 24 hour service 911

Fire Station 24 hour service (recorder) 564-2610
Joe Guyotte, Fire Chief home phone 564-2187
Police Department 24 hour service 564-8021
Sheriff's Department 24 hour service 564-3304
Ambulance Service 24 hour service non-emergency 564-3078/564-3989 911

Mayo Regional Hospital 24 hour service 564-8401
State Senator Paul T Davis, Sr. 287-1505
State Address 3 State House Station, Augusta, ME 04333 287-1540

Home Address
Toll-free telephone
e-mail

36 Townhouse Road, Sangerville, ME 04479
Message Service
sendavis@myottmail.com

876-4047 (Res.)
1-800-423-6900
343-0258 (Cell)

State Representative

Norman Higgins

800-423-2900

State Address

Maine Legislative Web Site
State House E-Mail
Home Address

House of Representatives, 2 State House Station
Augusta, ME 04333-0002

www.maine.gov/legis/house

Norman.Higgins@legislature.maine.gov

P.O. Box 594, Dover-Foxcroft, ME 04426

287-4469(TTY)
287-1440(Voice)
1-800-423-2900
(Message Center)
564-8214 (Res.)

Local Schools

Superintendent of Schools
Foxcroft Academy
SeDoMoCha Middle School

SeDoMoCha Elementary School

SeDoMoCha

West Main Street
Harrison Avenue
Harrison Avenue

564-2421
564-8351
564-6535 opt 2
564-6535 opt 3

Penquis Higher Education Citr. 50 Mayo Street 564-2942
County Numbers

District Court East Main Street 564-2240
Registry of Deeds East Main Street 564-2411
County Commissioners East Main Street 564-2161
Registrar of Probate East Main Street 564-2431

Driver's Licenses-D-F Mobile Unit

Driver's Licenses - Bangor
Thompson Free Library

Health Officer
Career Center
Piscataquis Regional YMCA

1st & last Wed - 9:30-3:00

American Legion Hall, Park Street

Airport Mall - Griffin Road - 8:00am - 5:00 pm

Summer hours - Tue & Thur 10-8, Wed & Fri 9-4, Sat 9-1
Winter hours - Tue & Thur 10-8, Wed & Fri 10-5, Sat 10-2
Brian Gaudet

Penquis Higher Education Center, 50 Mayo Street
Park Street

624-9000 x 52114

942-1319
564-3350

564-3318 x1025
564-8196
564-7111
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PISCATAOUIS COUNTY ICE ARENA

e Y P

Seeking an Event Space alternative? The NxtLvl of the PCIA offers a conference and dining
room for events including corporate and birthday parties. Used by many in Piscataquis County,
the PCIA “Skate and Dine” events allow for a different kind of party experience. Individuals,
Schools, Churches, and Businesses alike have enjoyed skating and socializing at the PCIA.

LEARN TO SKATE, YOUTH HOCKEY, STICK & PUCK, PUBLIC SKATE ICE

HOCKEY/ FIGURE SKATING / CURLING / BROOMBALL
Your Skill-Level will not determine Your Ability to Have Fun!
The PCIA will ensure Skating Programs are available to all

from Beginner to Seasoned Veterans!
Build Relationships - Experience Fun - Grow Personally
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PCIA Current Happenings
Curling — Broomball
Penquis Youth Hockey Association & other youth hockey programs
PCIA Skate Programs - Adult League Hockey
Public Skates - FA Club Hockey including members from other area HS’s
Participants from Greenville, Milo/Brownville, Guilford, and Corinth schools.
Private Rentals including Birthday Parties and Corporate Functions

Possible Future Events
The PCIA is also looking for alternative usage options for the facility. Future events may include concerts,
trash & treasure sales, conventions, trade shows, themed dinners, roller hockey, roller derby, indoor soccer,
themed public skates (Laser Lights, holiday), summer hockey camps (daytime & overnight), summer figure
skating camps and Family Fun Days where people can gather to play Volleyball, Cornhole, Badminton, and
more. We are looking to increase our programming allowing all to participate. People with disabilities and/or
who are wheelchair dependent, will also have the opportunity to participate in multiple activities at the PCIA.
Homeschoolers will have the opportunity to enhance their education activities by utilizing the facility during the
day when others are in class. Daily, we are discovering new opportunities for our participants. We welcome
your thoughts and thank you for your support!

The PCIA - 1049 W Main St — Dover-Foxcroft, ME 04426
thepcia.com
information.pcia@gmail.com
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